SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
April 12,2018
~9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, April 12, 2018, in
the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20™ Street Mall — Third Floor, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland,
California. -

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
" BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/ CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART _
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083. '

Patricia K. Williams
Interim District Secretary

Please note:
Although the address of the Board Room has changed, it is still in the same location.




Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire

in connection with;:

1.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of March 22, 2018.* Board
requested to authorize.

B. Resolution Consolidating 2018 District Elections.* Board requested to
adopt.

C. OIR Recommendations for Improvement to the BART Police Oversight
Structure.* Board requested to ratify.

D. Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member.* Board
requested to ratify. : : ,

E. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9043, Train Control Cables.*
Board requested to authorize.

PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes _

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Allen, Chairperson

A. Extension of Time for Agreement No. 6M2066, Insurance Brokerage
Services.* Board requested to authorize.

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS

Director Simon, Chairperson

A. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9044, 35kV Cables for Traction Power.*
Board requested to authorize.

B. Valley Transportation Authority/Bay Area Rapid Transit Silicon Valley
Phase II Extension Project: Final Supplemental Environmental Impact
Statement/Subsequent Environmental Impact Report.* For information.

* Attachment available 2 of 4



6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS

Director Blalock, Chairperson

A. State Legislation for Consideration.* Board requested to authorize.

B. City of Livermore: Isabel Neighborhood Plan Update.* For information.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. CONTROLLER/TREASURER’S REPORT

A. (CONTINUED from March 22, 2018, Board Meeting)
Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period Ending
December 31, 2017.* For information.

9. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports.

(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board

Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions.

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

10. PUBLIC COMMENT

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under

their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

11. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

Al CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones, Assistant
General Manager, Administration; and Martin Gran, Chief
Employee Relations Officer

Employee Organizations: (1)
)

)
4)
()
(6)

)

Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;

American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees, Local 3993;

BART Police Officers Association;

BART Police Managers Association;

Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and
Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, BART
Professional Chapter

Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)

Government Code Section:  54957.6

* Attachment available

3o0f4



B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT
Title: District Secretary
Government Code Section:  54957(b)(1)

C. CONFERENCE WITH NEGOTIATORS
Designated Representatives: Directors Keller, Raburn, and Simon
Title: District Secretary
Government Code Section:  54957.6

12.  OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available 4 of 4



DRAFT
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,810th Meeting
March 22, 2018

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held March 22, 2018, convening at 9:01 a.m. in
the Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Raburn presided; Patricia
K. Williams, Interim District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and
Raburn.

Absent:  Director McPartland. Director Dufty entered the Meeting later.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:
1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of March 8, 2018.

2. Side Letters of Agreement.

a. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees
(eBART), Local 3993, SL 17-01, Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions

b. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees,
Local 3993, SL 18-01, Contract Reorganization, Modification of
Disciplinary Procedures, Clarification of Special Pay Provisions, and
Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison

c. Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555, SL 17-02, Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions

d. BART Police Managers’ Association SL 1-17 Clarlﬁcatlon of Special
Pay Provisions

e. BART Police Officers’ Association SL 2-17 Clarification of Special
Pay Provisions

f.  Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, SL 18-01
Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

g. Service Employees International Union (eBART), Local 1021 SL 18-
01 Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

3. - Resolution Authorizing Execution of the Additional Rail Cars Project
Application for the Fiscal Year 2018 Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP).

Director Saltzman requested that Item 2-A, Approval of Minutes of March 8, 2018, be removed
and voted on separately. Director Allen requested that Item 2-B, Side Letters of Agreement, be
removed and voted on separately.

Director Saltzman moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 5367, In The Matter of
Authorizing Execution of a Project Application and Filing Related Forms for the FY 2017-18
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for $5,635,855 in Funding for the LCTOP

-1-



DRAFT
Additional Rail Car Project. President Raburn seconded the motion, which carried by
unanimous acclamation. Ayes — 7: Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman,
Simon and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent —2: Directors Dufty and McPartland.

Director Saltzman moved approval of Item 2-A, Approval of the Minutes of March 8, 2018, with
the correction to the Minutes of the Board of Directors taking a position to support Senate Bill
827 if amended by working with the authors to address the concerns of the Board related to
tenant protections, affordability, labor provisions, incentives for developers, and prevailing
wages. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes —
7: Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.
Absent — 2: Directors Dufty and McPartland.

President Raburn called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the Board:
Robert S. Allen

Clarence Fischer

Roland LeBrun

Director Dufty entered the meeting.
President Raburn announced that the order of the agenda items would be changed.

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter
of Officer-Involved Shooting: Process and Update, before the Board. General Manager Grace
Crunican and Deputy Chief Jeffrey Jennings presented the item. The item was discussed.

Afiyah Chambers addressed the Board.
Discussion continued.

President Raburn brought the matter of Item 2-B, Side Letters of Agreement before the Board.
Mr. Michael Jones, Assistant General Manager, Administration; Mr. Martin Gran, Chief Labor
Relations Officer; and Ms. Shana Dines, Assistant Chief Labor Relations Officer, presented the
item. The item was discussed. Director Raburn moved that the General Manager be authorized
to execute Side Letters of Agreement:
a. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (eBART), Local
3993, SL 17-01, Clarification of Special Pay Provisions
b. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Local 3993, SL 18-01,
Contract Reorganization, Modification of Disciplinary Procedures, Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions, and Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison
c. Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555, SL 17-02, Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions
d. BART Police Managers’ Association SL 1-17 Clarification of Special Pay Provisions
e. BART Police Officers’ Association SL 2-17 Clarification of Special Pay Provisions
f.  Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, SL 18-01 Clarification of Special
Pay Provisions :
g. Service Employees International Union (¢eBART), Local 1021, SL 18-01 Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions



DRAFT
Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8:
Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0.
Absent — 1: Director McPartland. ‘

Director Allen, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter Financial
Outlook for Fiscal Year 2019 before the Board. Ms. Pamela Herhold, Acting Assistant General
Manager, Administration and Budgets; Mr. Dennis Markham, Department Manager, Operating
Budgets; and Mr. Michael Eiseman, Manager of Financial Planning, presented the item. The
item was discussed.

Director Simon, brought the matter of Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9041, C55 Interlocking,
before the Board. President Raburn moved that the General Manager be authorized to award
Invitation for Bid No. 9041, for the procurement of turnouts, to Voelstalpine Nortrak, Inc.,
Seattle, Washington for the bid price of $2,125,806.94, including all taxes, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the District’s
protest procedures.

Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8:
Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0.
Absent - 1: Director McPartland.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and certification by the
Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this purpose.)

Director Simon brought the matter of Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I
and Phase II, before the Board.. Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations; Mr.
Robert Mitroff, Chief Transit System Development Officer; and Ms. Leyla Hedayat, Planning
and Program Manager of the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority, presented the item.
The item was discussed.

Roland LeBrun addressed the Board.

Director Simon brought the matter of Station Wayfinding Signage/Real-time Display
Improvement Update before the Board. Mr. Oversier, and Mr. Tian Feng, District Architect,
presented the item. The item was discussed.

Director Simon brought the matter of Service Plan for Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Project
before the Board. Mr. Oversier; Ms. Tamar Allen, Chief Maintenance and Engineering Officer;
Ms. Rachel Russell, Senior Planner; and Mr. Thomas Tumola, Manager of Schedules and
Services, presented the item.

Director Keller exited the meeting.

The item was discussed.

Karen Heisler addressed the Board

. Discussion continued.



DRAFT
Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation ,
Committee, brought the matter of Authorization of Payment to Scoop Technologies for Federal
Transit Administration Grant before the Board. Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager of
Planning and Development, and Ms. Jumana Nabti, Manager of Access Programs presented the
item. The item was discussed. President Raburn moved that the General Manager be authorized
to pay Scoop Technologies in an amount not to exceed $153,000.00 for services rendered under
the Integrated Carpool to Transit Project Agreement, and all funding is included in the budget for
the Federal Transportation Administration Mobility on Demand Sandbox Grant. Director Allen
seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —7: Directors Allen,
Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent —2: Directors
Keller and McPartland.

Director Blalock brought the matters of Station Access Program Update and Bicycle Program
Update before the Board. Mr. Tim Chan, Manager of Planning, and Mr. Steve Beroldo, Manager -
of Access Programs, presented the items. The items were discussed.

President Raburn announced that the Board would enter into closed session as listed on today’s
regular Meetlng agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session upon conclusion of
the closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 1:08 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 1:18 p.m.
Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.

Absent:  Directors Keller and McPartland. Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting
later.

Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting.

Directors Saltzman and Simon exited the Meeting.

Director Blalock exited the Meeﬁng.

The Meeting was adjourned at 3:02 p.m. for lack of quorum.

President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded its closed session and that there were
no announcements to be made.

Patricia K. Williams
Interim District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL:

T2t 4. [B

4w zerg

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 12/27/2017

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Patricia
Williams
Dept: District Secretary

¥3-18

enera] Counsel

Controller/Treasurer,

District Secretary

I\@\W
¢

i

l

i

BARC

';/‘-fﬂ%‘ [ ]

Consolidation of 2018 District Elections

PURPOSE: To receive Board approval of a resolution requesting the Boards of
Supervisors of Alameda County, Contra Costa County, and the City and County of San
Francisco to provide for the consolidation of the District election of members of the Board
of Directors with the State of California general election to be held on November 6, 201 8
The election districts are 2, 4, 6, and 8.

DISCUSSION: In order to conform to the California State Elections Code, the District
must request the Boards of Supervisors of the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa and San
Francisco to consolidate the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District election with the
State of California general election. The attached resolution has been drafted to accomplish

this.

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $1,500,000 will be allocated in the Fiscal Year
2019 Operating Budget to cover both the District’s share of the cost of the election and the
cost of printing, handling, translating, and mailing the candidates' statements. Some of the
costs for the candidates' statements will be reimbursed to the District. The Fiscal Year 2019
Operating Budget allocation covers both Election Consolidation and Candidates' Statements
of Qualifications. Board Resolution No. 4652, adopted by the Board of Directors on March
27, 1997, (attached) establishes rules governing candidates’ Statements of Qualifications for

District elections.

ALTERNATIVES: None.

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution

requesting the Boards of Supervisors of Alameda County, Contra Costa County, and the




Consolidation of 2018 District Elections

| City and County of San Francisco to provide for the consolidation of the District election
with the State of California general election, to be held on November 6, 2018.

MOTION: Adoption of the attached resolution.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

requesting the Boards of Supervisors of Alameda

County, Contra Costa County, and the City and

County of San Francisco to provide for the

consolidation of a District election, electing

members of the Board of Directors,

with the State of California general election, to

be held on November 6, 2018 / Resolution No.

WHEREAS, Section 28746.6 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California
provides:

“A general district election for the election of directors whose terms are to expire in that year
shall be held and conducted on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each
even-numbered year and shall be consolidated, where possible, with the general election held on
that date™; and

WHEREAS, Section 28746.8 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California
provides: ‘ ' '

“Except as otherwise provided in this article, candidates for the Board shall be nominated, the
election held and conducted, and the ballots canvassed in accordance with the provisions of the
Uniform District Election Law”; and

WHEREAS, Section 28747.2 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California
provides:

“A candidate for election from any of the election districts shall be nominated and elected by the
voters residing within the election district from which he is elected”; and

WHEREAS, Section 28747.4 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California in
part provides:

“The county election official of each county within the boundaries of the district shall
conduct the election and canvass the returns for those election districts or portions of election
districts which are within the county of his or her jurisdiction as county election official. After
the official canvass has been taken, the county election official shall report the returns, by
election district number, to the board”; and

WHEREAS, a State of California General Election will be held on Tuesday, November 6,
2018; and ‘



WHEREAS, the California State Legislature has established nine election districts within
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District as provided in Section 28745 of the Public
Utilities Code of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10522 of the Elections Code and 28750.4 of the Public
Utilities Code of the State of California, the District has filed with the county election official of
each affected County a certified copy of Resolution No. 5184 of the Board of Directors of the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District which provides a map showing the boundaries of
the District and the boundaries of the election districts and maps of the election districts prepared
in accordance with Article 2.4 of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code
of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, the territory in which said election is to be held is, to wit, all of the territory
of said Districts Nos. 2, 4, 6, and 8 lying within the County of Alameda, the County of Contra
Costa, and the City and County of San Francisco (hereinafter called the "Counties");

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District, as follows:

Section 1.

That the Boards of Supervisors of the Counties are hereby requested to order the
consolidation of said district elections with said general election to be held on Tuesday,
November 6, 2018, and to further provide that within the territory affected by said order of
consolidation, to wit, the Counties, that except as otherwise provided in Article 2.2 of Chapter 3
of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California, the election shall
be held and conducted and the ballots canvassed in accordance with the provisions of said
Uniform District Election Law.

Section 2.
That the Secretary of the District is hereby authorized and directed to certify to the due
adoption of this resolution and to file copies hereof, so certified, with the Board of Supervisors

and with the county election official of each of the counties.

# # #



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ey
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Resolution of the Board of Directors of

the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit

District Establishing the District Rules

Governing Candidates’ Statement of '
ualificati istrict Electio Resolution No. 4652

WHEREAS, Section 13307 of the Elections Code of the State of Califomia
provides, among other things, that candidates for District office may prepare a candidate’s
Statement of Qualifications of up to 200 words, the Board may authorize an increase in the
limitation on words for the statement from 200 to 400 words; the Board may require each
candidate filing a statement to pay in advance his or her estimated pro rata share of the total cost
of producing and mailing the candidate’s statement; and that, before the nomination period
opens, the Board shall determine whether a charge shall be levied against that candidate for the
candidate’s statement, and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Directors of the San Fraxiiiéisc&'; Bay
Area Rapid Transit District to adopt rules governing candidates’ Statements of Qualifications for
District elections.

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, as follows:

1. Each candidate for the BART Board of Directors who prepares a
candidate’s Statement of Qualifications pursuant to California Elections Code Section 13307
shall be required to pay a total election fee of $750 at the time of filing as part of the cost to the
District of printing, handling, translating, and mailing the candidate’s statement, including the
cost of foreign language translations.

2. The limit on the length of the candidate’s Statement of Qualifications shall
be 200 words.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is authorized to adopt
procedures consistent with Section 13309 of the Elections Code for relieving indigent candidates
from paying the requisite fee; and

1 of 2

Adopted March 27, 1997



ey

F BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that eacix candidate filing as a candidate for
BART Director must complete the State of California Fair Political Practices Commission’s

disclosure form entitled: “Statement of Economic Interests” and to file said form with the
District Secretary of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the provisions of this resolution shall govern
the 1998 election and all subsequent elections for the District’s Board of Directors unless

otherwise modified by this Board.

Supersedes Resolution No. 4622, adopted June 27, 1996.

(A A

2 of 2



‘SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

TO: ‘Board of Directors DATE: April 6, 2018
FROM: . IndependentPolice Auditor
SUBJECT: BART Citizen Oversight Model Evaluation |

Pursuantto Chapter 3:01 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), the Board of Directors (Board),
with input from the BART Police. Citizen Review Boatd (BPCRB), Independent Police Auditor (IPA),
BART Police Associations (BPOA ‘and BPMA), complamants, and the pubhc will evaluate the BART
Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implemenitation to determine whether the need éxists
to make changes and/or otherwise make-adjustments to the system to improve its continued performance:

Chapter 3-01 further provides that this evaluation shall in no way be intended to eliminate the BART Police
citizen oversight structure.

In order to facilitate the review and evaluation requited by the:-Model, and after significant research and
extensive discussion, the Office of the Independent Police Audifor (OIPA) engaged the OIR, Group to
evaluate the system and generate a report for your consideration. The evaluation commenced in January
2017 and a, final report was generated and submitted in June 2017 (with ani Adderidum in July 2017)
including a total of 54 recommendations for improvement. The report was distributed and discussed at a
July 18, 2017 Operations, Safety and Workforce Standing Committee meeting and again at Board meetings
on August 10, 2017 and February 22, 2018. On March 8, 2018, the Board voted to approve and implement
39 of the recommendations;

With regard to the remaining 15 recommendations, BPD Chief Rojas has indicated that he is. suppoﬁwe of
moving forwatd with. 11, but has stated that he cannot endorse implementation of 4 at this time. OIPA
recognizes that some degree of further research, analy ’s, and d1scus51on -may be necessary w1th regard to
those 4 items (numbered 1, 3, 12, and 22), an
time being, Accordingly, | attached to this memorandum is a Mouon wlnch if adopted by the Board wﬂl
‘ratify adoption of the 11 numbered recommendations listed in the Mation.

Both OIPA: and Chief Rojas are prepared to respond to your detailed inquiries regarding any of the
. remaining 15 recommendations.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me-at (510) 874-7477.

| Rissll 6. Bloom

gc:  Board Appointed Officers




RATIFICATION OF 11 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT TO THE BART
POLICE OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE

MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the acceptance, adoption, and implementation as practical by
the BART Office of the Independent Police Auditor of the 11 recommendations listed below that
were submitted by the OIR Group in its Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure dated June 2017 with an Addendum dated July 2017.

OIR Group Evaluation Report Recommendations:
4,14,15,16,21, 25,27, 31, 32, 38, 39.




Memorandum

TO: Boatd of Directors DATE: April 6,2018
FROM:  Independent Police Auditor

SUBJECT: Appointment.of BART Policefff}itizenfReviewaqardiMﬁmber

In acoordance W’lﬂ'l Chapter 2~06 of the BART szen Ovefmght Model vacanoxes on: the' BART

stinct 2 whmh has. a.term that expnres on June 30 2019 BART D1str1ct 2 D;rector Joel Keller
has selected a candidate to-fill the vacanicy for the tinexpired portion of the térin.

Attached to this:memorandum is:a:motion which; if adopted by the Board of Directors, will ratlfy
Directot Kellérs appointment.

Please contact me at (510) 874-7477 or oipa@bartigov at your convenience if you have any
questions about this'matter. :

Aitachment

¢e:  Boatd Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager




RATIFICATION OF BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD DISTRICT 2 APPOINTEE

MOTION:
That the Board of Directors ratifies the appointment of the following individual to the BART
Police Citizen Review Board to fill the vacancy that exists in the seat representing BART

District 2? with a term that expires on June 30, 2019:

Wade Harper — District 2



Wade Harper

Mr. Harper sérved as Mayor of the City of Antioch from 2012 to 2016 and was Antioch’s first
African American mayor. He was elected as vice mayor to the Antioch City Council and served
from 2010 to 2012. Prior to this he was an appointed Antioch School Board Trustee serving
from 2009 to 2010. Mr. Harper served a total of 24 years in Law Enforcement for the cities of
Emeryville and Tracy.

Mr. Harper has spearheaded the city of Antioch’s Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Celebration and.
Scholarship Program for 6 years. He was also president of the Antioch Community Foundation
providing grants to non-profit organizations that support our youth.

He is a minister and former pastor. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Pastoral Studies from
Patten University and was awarded Student of the Year. He also earned his Master of Business
Administration in Leadership from John F. Kennedy University and was honored as Alumni of
the Year in the School of Management.

As a retired annuitant he worked as a teacher at Antioch High School teaching the subjects of
Law Enforcement Careers, and Leadership in the LAPS (Leadership and Public Services)
Academy.

In his free time Mr. Harper enjoys spending time with his family, maintaining his fithess and he

just published his first book, “Anointed for Leadership: Lessons from Law Enforcement, Politics
and Pastoral Ministry.”




EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL; GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

% f > Approve and Forward to Board of Directors
A / Pt )

DATE: 2/26/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Heather Fergus \ enepalCounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary C
Dept: Maintenance g ipeering i IS‘ é ! / |
% 4{5//« [ ] ( []

Signature/Date:

Gl |4fal o)

I Status: Approved ' | Date Created: 2/26/2018 I

[1

" Invitation for BID No. 9043 For the Procurement of Switch & Lock Movement
Power Control Cables & Train Control MUX Cables

PURPOSE: To authorize the General Manager to award BID 9043 for the Procurement of
Switch & Lock Movement Power Control Cables & Train Control MUX Cables.

DISCUSSION:

Cables that provide power, controls and indications to and from Switch Machines and
Wayside MUX boxes connect the Train Control Rooms to Wayside equipment. The current
cables have been in service for more than 50 years, have reached the end-of-life and are no
longer sustainable in a State of Good Repair. This Bid is for services to design,
manufacture, and furnish up to 25,000 linear feet of Switch and Lock Movement Power
Cables; 20,000 linear ft. of Switch and Lock Movement Control Cables and 20,000 linear ft.
of Train Control MUX Cables. The work shall include the manufacturing, assembly,
acceptance testing, and delivery of the cables. Installation is not included in this
procurement contract. ‘

- The District originally advertised Invitation for Bid 903 1, for the same services on June 9,
2017, but received no bids.



Invitation for BID No. 9043 For the Procurement of Switch & Lock Movemient Power Control Cables & Tra (cont.)

Calls to potential bidders indicated that the technical specifications were unclear and some
vendors were unaware of the advertisement.

The District revised the specifications and re-advertised this Invitation for Bid 9043 on
January 24, 2018.

Advance Notices were sent to eight (8) prospective bidders.

The District received a single bid from All Industrial Electric Supply. In accordance with the
detailed evaluation procedures developed for this procurement, All Industrial Electric
Supply's Technical BID was reviewed and evaluated for the Bid's technical qualifications.
The staff deems the Bid responsive, meeting the minimum technical requirements.

Follow-up calls were made to potential bidders asking why they did not bid. Of five (5)
plan holders contacted, four (4) responded. In addition to Industrial Electric Supply, one
(1) firm, RSCC, prepared a bid but unfortunately mailed it to the wrong address and,
therefore, it was not received by BART in a timely fashion. No additional information was
received as to why others did not bid.

The sealed Price BID was publicly opened on February 13, 2018. All Industrial Electric
Supply's Bid Price of $226,440.00 was 26% below the Engineer's Estimate of $304,013.00.

Bidder - TotalBidPrice
All Industrial Electric Supply  $226,440.00
Engineer's Estimate $304,013.00

Pursuant to the District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) Program, the Office
of Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender-neutral efforts for Invitations for Bid (IFB).
Therefore, no DBE goal was set for this IFB.



Invitation for BID No. 9043 For the Procurement of Switch & Lock Movement Power Control Cables & Tra (cont.)

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $248,518 ($226,440 including 9.75% sales tax) for award of IFB-9043 is funded
by the projects below. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are
currently available to meet this obligation. The following sections depict funding assigned to
the referenced projects and they are included in the totality to track funding history against
spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination
of these sources as listed.

20CE00 — Switch Machine Replacement: Mainline $107,024

As of 03/13/2018, $39,274,577 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$35,944,010, committed $1,552,501, and reserved $134,000 to date. This action will commit
$107,024, leaving an available fund balance of $1,537,041 for this project. Below is the
funding for project 20CE000:

Various FTA Grant Sources § 24,019,315

State Prop 1B & Local Area Bridge Toll $ 10,968,864
BART Operating Allocation to Capital $ 4,286,397

TOTAL | $ 39,274,577

20CE001 — Switch Machine Replacement: Yards $23,688

As of 03/13/2018, $8,692,904 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$3,956,304, and committed $3,579,493 to date. This action will commit $23,688, leaving an

available fund balance of $1,133,418 for this project. Below is the funding for project
20CE001:

‘Fund Group e | e Amount
Various FTA Grant Sources $4,113 566
State Prop 1B $ 1,350,000
BART Operating Allocation to Capital $ 3,229,337

TOTAL | $ 8,692,903




Invitation for BID No. 9043 For the Procurement of Switch & Lock Movement Power Control Cables & Tra (cont.)

201 N002 — MUX Cable Replacement Cable $117,806

As of 3/13/18, $1,309,749 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended $276 and
reserved $142,600 to date. This action will commit $117,806, leaving an available fund
balance of $1,049,067 for this project. Below is the funding for project 20LN002:

F/G 3602 FY13 Capital Improvements CA-54- 0007-00 $109,025
F/G 3605 - FY15 Capital Improvements CA-54-0041-00 $938,775
F/G 8529 - FY15 Bart Operating to Capital $234,693
F/G 851M - West Dublin/Pleasant Hill Land Sale $ 27,256

TOTAL $1,309,749

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District Reserves.
ALTERNATIVES:

1. Continue to operate on existing cables which are past end-of-life and are subject to
failures. This could have a negative impact to revenue service.

2. Re-bid the Contract. This will delay the work by at least one year while the reliability
of our existing cables continues to deteriorate.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award BID 9043 for the Procurement of Switch &
Lock Movement Power Control Cables & Train Control MUX Cables to All Industrial
Electric Supply for the not to exceed price of $226,440.00 plus applicable taxes, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager subject to compliance with the District's
Protest Procedures and the FTA requirements related to Protest Procedures.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

~

4/’{ 1 ousst——
DATE: 3/16/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Terri Hodges | Ge¢neral Coynsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

%}5/,”%%[1 HMI

V

EXTENSION OF TIME OF PERFORMANCE FOR AGREEMENT 6M2066
INSURANCE BROKERAGE SERVICES

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the Controller/Treasurer to extend the time of
performance under agreement 6M2066 with AON Risk Services Inc, for an additional 4
months to August 31, 2018. An RFP for these services will be issued for contracting of
these services.

DISCUSSION: This contract provides Insurance broking services for the various District
insurance programs. This includes the casualty, propetty, workers compensation and other
District insurances.

The current agreement is for the period of July 10, 2017 through April 30, 2018. The
extension of time will allow for continued services through August 31, 2018.

The extension of these services is necessary as we prepare to place our insurance for the
upcoming insurance renewal period. The RFP is being composed and should be completed
shortly.

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for this contract extension in the amount of $38,750 covering
services to be rendered through June 30, 2018 is included in the operating budget of the
Insurance Department cost center number 0304331, Account 681300 Professional and
Technical services. Funding for services to be rendered in the FY19 is included in the
operating budget of the Insurance Department for that year, subject to approval. This action
is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District reserves in the current
Fiscal Year.



EXTENSION OF TIME OF PERFORMANCE FOR AGREEMENT 6M2066 INSURANCE BROKERAGE SERVICES
(cont.)

ALTERNATIVES: The alternative is to allow the agreement to expire.

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the following motion:

MOTION: The Controller/Treasurer is authorized to extend the time of performance under
agreement 6M2066 with AON Risk Services, Inc. for an additional 4 months to August 31,
2018 with additional funds not to exceed $38,750.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

. | GENE AGER APPRO : 4 M GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
2l Zerd| ves

DATE: 3/23/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

7]
Originator/Prepared by: Gordon Wong \ Gener ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
Dept: Maintenance and Engineering ‘;J | (g
Lot 117/ W

Signature/Date: 3/27/Z0/f 3/{94g O] //57[ ] [ 1]
. a | |

IFB No. 9044 Purchase of 35kV Cable, 1/C to The Okonite Company

PURPOSE:

To request Board Authorization to Award Invitation for Bid No. 9044 for the purchase of
35KV CABLE, 1/C to THE OKONITE COMPANY, San Ramon, CA.

DISCUSSION:

The cables installed between 34.5kV Traction Power substations in Alameda, Contra Costa
and San Francisco Counties were originally installed over 40 years ago, and they urgently
need to be replaced due to aging and heavy use. The Traction Power Engineering
Department has developed a replacement design for installation. This Invitation for Bid (IFB)
is for the purchase of 600,000 linear feet of 35KV 350kemil cable to facilitate Traction
Power Cable replacement projects. This procurement supports the District’s goal of
achieving a "State of Good Repair" and will enable reliable revenue service.

This is a FIVE (5) year estimated quantity contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District’s
standard estimated quantity contract, during the term of the contract the District is required
- to purchase a minimum amount of 50% of the contract bid price of $7,624,771.50 (includes
all taxes). Upon Board approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the
authority to purchase up to 150% of the contract bid price ($11,437,157.20) subject to
availability of funding.



IFB No. 9044 Purchase of 35kV Cable, 1/C to The Okonite Company

Under the terms of this IFB, the price is based on current COMEX pricing of $3.00 per
pound of copper. However, once a Purchase Order is issued the COMEX price may differ
due to market conditions. The District will purchase cable based on the formulae provided in
the IFB package that provides for daily copper index market pricing. Any change in market
pricing will change the IFB total cost, but in no event will the total purchase amount BART
disburses be higher than the 150% of the Bid price.

A notice requesting bids was published on January 22, 2018, and at the same time the
solicitation was posted on the BART Vendor Portal. Correspondence was sent to FIVE (5)
prospective bidders inviting them to view the solicitation on the Vendor Portal. Bids were
opened on February 13, 2018 and three (3) bids were received.

Bidder
The Okonite Company
San Ramon, CA

Draka Cableteq
No. Dighton, MA

Live Wire Electrical Supply

Lot Price

600,000 feet

(Quantity)

$6,947,400.40

$7,164,000.00

$8,179,200.00

Grand Total including

9.75% Sales Tax

$7,624,771.50

$7,862,490.00

$8,976,672.00

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $12,000,000.00

Staff has determined that the apparent low Bidder, The Okonite Company



IFB No. 9044 Purchase of 35kV Cable, 1/C to The Okonite Company

(Okonite), submitted a responsive Bid. Staff has also determined that Okonite's Bid price is
fair and reasonable based on District Staff’s estimate. BART’s previous experience is a
purchase of 108,000 linear feet of 35KV 350kemil cable.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights
set a 5% Local Small Business Prime Preference for this Invitation for Bid for Local Small
Businesses certified by the California Department of General Services located in Alameda,
Contra Costa, or San Francisco County. None of the Bidders referenced above

were certified Local Small Businesses, so no Bidder was eligible for the 5% Local Small
Business Prime Preference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $7,624,771.50 (including all applicable sales taxes) for award of
IFB#9044 is included in the total project budget for FMS#15EJRR1 - 34.5 KV AC Cable
Replacement. The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is
included to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this
request will be expended from the following source:

Fund # | Fund Description Funded Amount
802A 2017A Measure RR GOB $409,364,368

As of March 23, 2018, $409,364,368 is the total budget for this project. BART has
expended $9,155,013 and committed $6,923,832 to date. This action will commit
$7,624,772, leaving an available fund balance of $385,660,752 in this project.

The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:



IFB No. 9044 Purchase of 35kV Cable, 1/C to The Okonite Company

The alternative is to reject the Bids and re-advertise the Contract. Staff does not believe that
this will result in lower prices or increased competition. In addition, if certain cable sections
are not replaced soon, there is a higher likelihood of cable failures resulting in delays or loss
of revenue service. |

RECOMMENDATION:

On the basis of analysis by staff, and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds
are available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award IFB No. 9044 for 35KV CABLE, 1/C to The
Okonite Company in the amount of $7,624,771.50 (including all applicable sales taxes),
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the
District’s Protest Procedures. |



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: April 6,2018
FROM: Grace Crunican

SUBJECT: Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority’s (VTA) BART Silicon Valley Phase
II Extension Project Environmental Impact Review Update

On April 5%, the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) Board took the following
steps on Phase II of VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Extension Project:

1. Certified the Phase I Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (SEIR)

2. Adopted Findings, Facts in Support of Findings and Statement of Overriding
Considerations.

3. Adopted a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

4. Adopted Recommended Project Description and approved the Phase II Project.

As a Responsible Agency under CEQA, the operating agency of the proposed project, and under
the terms of the Compreheénsive Agreement between the two agencies, the BART Board will also

consider taking actions to advance the project.

BART staff will bring an information item to the BART Board on April 12™, At the April 26
BART Board meeting, staff will be recommending that the Board accept the Phase II SEIR,
adopt the Findings, and approve the Project.

If you have any questions please contact Bob Powers, Deputy General Manager, at (510) 464-

6126.
,7 . -

U Grace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: April 6,2018

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: State Legislation for Consideration

At the Board of Directors meeting on April 12, staff will present state legislation for your consideration.
Attached are a bill analysis and bill‘ language for the state legislation.

OPPOSE POSITION

AB 3034 (Low) Public transit employer-employee relations:

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Following the staff presentation, a request will be made of the Board to consider passing the draft motion
shown below.

If you have any questions, please contact Rodd Lee, Department Manager, Government and Community
Relations at 510-464-6235.

s (uane

Grage Crunican

Attachments

cC: Deputy General Manager
Board Appointed Officers
Executive Staff

DRAFT MOTION:
That the Board of Directors opposes AB 3034.



AB 3034 (Low) Analysis and Recommendation

TITLE: AB 3034 — Public transit employer-employee relations: San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District ' '
AUTHOR: Low (D-Cupertino)

SPONSOR: American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)

BACKGROUND:

In 1968, the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) was enacted to govern labor-management relationships
within California local government entities. The MMBA establishes mandatory rights and duties by which
local agencies must abide. It also empowers the California Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) to
enforce local rules. The rights and duties established by the act have created a mandatory collective
negotiations system for California local government. However, most California transit districts, including
BART, are not currently subject to the MMBA but rather are subject to labor provisions contained in the
statues that created each district.

In 1973, the California Department of Industrial Relations established the representation of BART
employees and adopted the findings of Arbitrator Sam Kagel that determined which employee classifications
fall into which bargaining units, as well as determining which employees would not be represented by
unions. BART has followed the Kagel/DIR decision since the adoption of the findings in 1973 with respect
to the classification of its employees. The BART Act (California Public Utility Code Section 28500 et seq.)
governs employer employee relations generally and provides the obligations to bargain in good faith.

PURPOSE: \

AB 3034 seeks to change BART’s current employer-employee relations for employees within supervisory
units; including without limitation, supervisory, professional, and technical employees. The bill would
require BART employer-employee relations with those employees be governed under the provisions of the
MMBA. Supervisory employees are, at BART and under the Kagel decision, represented by AFSCME.
Under this proposed legislation, labor relations with AFSCME would be governed by MMBA and subject
to the exclusive jurisdiction of, and administered by, the PERB. ‘

BART IMPACT:

AB 3034 would have a negative impact on the BART District by potentially delaying the implementation of
essential projects and services needed to support operations and maintenance, including BART Board
initiatives. Also, significant annual costs may be incurred because of a third party adjudication process. A
process that may result in the loss of local control by the BART Board.

Under the BART Act, the parties are required to bargain in good faith on issues subject to bargaining; such
as wages and working conditions. Should the BART District reach and declare an impasse, the District can
impose its last, best, and final offer then move forward while continuing to discuss the concerns of the union.
Under the MMBA, the union within 30 days from the impasse declaration, could request an MMBA fact-
finding process, circumventing the bargaining process with the BART Board.

Page 1 of 2



The fact-finding process could take 90 days or more. Each party would need to share in the administrative -
costs and there is no guarantee of a resolution because it is an advisory process. During the fact-finding

process, the BART Board would have no authority to direct staff to implement new projects or services. This

impediment could adversely impact train control, safety initiatives and service improvements.

For more than 40 years, BART’s employer-employee relations have been governed by the BART Act.
However, for one bargaining unit of approximately 275 employees, AB 3034 would require the BART
District to operate under the MMBA for mid-contract disputes and potentially both the BART Act and the
MMBA during contract negotiations.

Under the MMBA, the BART District would be subject to a different set of rules and case law which would
require additional labor relations and legal resources to adequately address the additional processes. The
estimated, annual cost for additional resources is up to $800,000.

AB 3034 could significantly reduce the District’s flexibility in implementing essential projects and services,

jeopardize meeting Measure RR bond spending obligations, and limit the imposition of additional regulatory
requirements.

KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION:
Support: American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, AFSCME
District Council 57, AFSCME Local 3993

Opposition: Unknown at this time.

STATUS:
Bill hearing scheduled in the Assembly Committee on Public Employees Retirement and Social Security on
April 18.

RECOMMENDATION:
] Support [J Neutral | Oppose

Analysis completed on 4/5/18.

Page 2 of 2



AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 23, 2018

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE—2017—18 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 3034

Introduced by Assembly Member Low

February 16, 2018

publie-eontracts: An act to add Section 28856 to the Pub}ic Utilities
Code, relating to public transit.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

AB 3034, as amended, Low. Public—contracts—Public transit
employer-employee relations: San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District. : .

(1) Existing law contains provisions relating to employer-employee
relations between the state and its employees, public schools and their
employees, local public agencies and their employees, and
postsecondary educational institutions and their employees. The
Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, in this regard, generally governs
employer-employee relations between local public agencies and their
employees. Existing laws provide these public employees with the right
to form, join, and participate in the activities of employee organizations
for the purpose of representation on all matters of employer-employee
relations. The selected employee organization has the right to represent
its members on all matters of employer-employee relations, including
disputes.

Existing law also prescribes the powers and duties of public transit
districts, including administering employer-employee relations. The
courts have held that the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, pertaining to
employer-employee relations between local public agencies and their

98



AB 3034 —2—

employees, does not apply to public transit districts that have a
statutorily prescribed method of administering employer-employee
relations that was in existence at the time the Meyers-Milias-Brown
Act was enacted.

This bill would give employees within the supervisory units of the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District the right to form, join,
and participate in the activities of employee organizations of their own
choosing for the purposes of representation on all employer-employee
relations matters and would permit these employees to meet, confer,
and enter into memoranda of understanding for these purposes pursuant
to the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act. The bill would provide that the act
governs these employer-employee relations and that they are subject
to the exclusive jurisdiction of, and are to be administered by, the Public
Employment Relations Board.

By increasing the duties of local public transit officials, the bill would
create a state-mandated local program.

(2) The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state.
Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that
reimbursement.

This bill would provide that, if the Commission on State Mandates
determines that the bill contains costs mandated by the state,
reimbursement for those costs shall be made pursuant to the statutory
provisions noted above.

Vote: majorlty Approprlatlon no. Flscal cornrnlttee ﬂe-yes
State-mandated local program: ne-yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. Section 28856 is added to the Public Utilities
2 Code, toread:

3 28856. (a) For employees within the supervisory units,
4 including, without limitation, supervisory, professional, and
5 technical employees, of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
6 District covered under this chapter, employer-employee relations

98



OO0~ Nh WK —

—3— AB 3034

shall be governed under the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (Chapter
10 (commencing with Section 3500) of Division 4 of Title I of the
Government Code).

(b) Employer-employee relations governed under the
Meyers-Milias-Brown Act shall be subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of and shall be administered by, the Public
Employment Relations Board, established pursuant to Section
3541 of the Government Code.

SEC. 2. Ifthe Commission on State Mandates determines that
this act contains costs mandated by the state, reimbursement to
local agencies and school districts for those costs shall be made
pursuant to Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division
4 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

98



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: April 6, 2018
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: City of Livermore: Isabel Neighborhood Plan Update — For Information

As discussed at the March 8, 2018 BART Board meeting, staff continues to advance the BART to
Livermore Extension Project (LVX), with the objective of completing the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) process and consideration by the Board for action by the end of June. Consistent
with the Board adopted System Expansion Policy, BART staff has been participating in a City of
Livermore process to prepare a Ridership Development Plan for the proposed Isabel Station.
Livermore has developed a draft Isabel Neighborhood Plan (Plan) for the Conventional BART
Alternative. On February 26, 2018, BART submitted a comment letter on the draft Plan and the
associated Draft EIR (attached). At the April 12 BART Board meeting, representatives of the City
of Livermore will provide an overview of the draft Plan. Livermore is scheduled to consider
adopting the Plan on May 14, 2018. The draft Plan and Draft EIR can be found at:

http://www.cityoflivermore.net/civicax/filebank/documents/17081/ (draft Plan),
http://www.cityoflivermore.net/citygov/cdd/bart/inp_deir.htm (Draft EIR).

Including the Isabel Neighborhood Plan, the Board will have opportunities to discuss LVX-related
matters at the following upcoming Board meetings:

1. April 12 (Information): City of Livermore Isabel Neighborhood Plan update
2. April 26 (Information): LVX project update, and summary of public outreach activities

3. May/June (Action): Board to consider certifying the LVX Environmental Impact Report
(EIR) and action on LVX project.

Please contact Carl Holmes (510) 464-7592 if you have any questions.
Vﬁrace Crunican

ce Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



BART

2018

Rebert Raburn, Ph.D.
PRESIDENT

Nicholas Josefowitz
VICE PRESIDENT

Grace Crunican
GENERAL MANAGER

DIRECTORS

Debora Allen
1ST DISTRICT

Joel Keller
2ND DISTRICT

Rebecca Saltzman
3RD DISTRICT

Robert Raburn, Ph.D.
4TH DISTRICT

John McPartland
5TH DISTRICT

Thomas M. Bialock, P.E.
BTH DISTRICT _

Lateefah Simon
7TH DISTRICT

Nichelas Josefowitz
8TH DISTRICT

Bevan Dufty
8TH DISTRICT

www.hart.gov

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688

Oakiand, CA 94604-2688

(510) 464-6000

February 26, 2016

Ashley McBride
Assistant Planner

- City of Livermore, Planning Division

1052 S. Livermore Ave.
Livermore, CA 94550

RE: Isabel Neighborhood Plan and Draft Environmental Impact Report
DearMs. McBride:

On behalf of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART), we appreciate the
opportunity to provide comments on the Isabel Neighborhood Plan (INP) Public Review
Draft and the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR). BART appreciates the City of
Livermore’s willingness to incorporate the BART Board-adopted policies and performance
measures for Transit-Oriented Development {2016),” Station Access {2016), and
Affordable Housing (2016), as well as consideration of the Transit-Oriented Development
(TOD} guidelines, and Multimodal Access Design Guidelines (MADG) for the development
of the plan.

Considering the potential BART to Livermore extension and BART’s position as a primary
landowner in the core of the INP, the region has a strong interest in seeing the Isabel
Neighborhood become a vibrant transit-oriented development around the BART Station
with rich multimodal access options. The vision of the Isabel area as a dynamic new
neighborhood of Livermore, offering jobs, housing, retail and community spaces and
parks with extensive pedestrian/bike trails and placemaking features, is closely tied to
BART's interests and policy goals. ;

BART looks forward to collaborating with the City to make the INP vision a reality. Thank
you for your thoughtful review and consideration of the comments below. If you have any
questions, please contact Tim Chan at (510) 287-4705 or at TChanl@®bart.gov.

Rega%
Val Menotti

Chief Planning and Development Officer
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit




Draft Isabel Neighborhood Comments

General comments

Parking. BART acknowledges the City’s efforts to minimize parking and enhance other multimodal access
opportunities. However, BART believes that the INP parking plans and policies can still be improved.

Despite the BART parking garage south of I-580 being sized appropriately for the projected 2040
ridership/parking demand based on the BART to Livermore Extension analysis, the INP plans for additional
parking in the neighborhood commercial center. Parking options include a surface, rooftop or
underground lot initially to service the retail center. The neighborhood commercial center will be designed
to accommodate a future multi-level parking structure for shared commercial and BART parking if the City
determines one is necessary in the future. As stated in the INP, any future commuter structure on this site
adjacent to BART station area will need to be further analyzed depending on future demand.

BART appreciates the decision not to include a parking structure adjacent to the station entrance from

the outset of the plan implementation since demand for parking may decrease in the future if other

multimodal access options are successful and/or autonomous vehicle services become prevalent. A"
parking lot can more feasibly be redeveloped than a garage, if no longer needed for parking.

That said, BART is concerned that the location of the additional parking capacity (as a surface, rooftop or
underground lot) in such close proximity to the BART station entrance at a key point of pedestrian and
bicycle access to the station will diminish the placemaking features of the development and discourage
active and shared-ride modes of transit access, as well as diminish the overall quality of the transit-
oriented development. Research indicates that distance from the station, and the quality of the built
environment, both influence the use of rail transit and the willingness of a patron to walk to a station,
especially for commercial destinations (see attached). This raises another concern that additional parking
at a central location could stand between BART and the Innovation Hub, discouraging workers from taking
BART to work and encouraging them to drive to work, particularly if parking is free or minimally priced.
This would reduce the likelihood that the Isabel Station will contribute to BART’s access mode share
targets from BART’s 2016 Station Access Policy Performance Measures and Targets. If the City were to
include additional parking, BART would recommend locating it further north, outside the core area but
still providing a connection to the retail proposed on Main Street. If a structured garage were eventually
deemed necessary, BART suggests that other nearby parking supplies might serve the purpose sufficiently.
The Airway Business Park District supplies an abundance of parking just west of and partially within a half-
mile radius of the proposed Isabel BART station.

In general, the neighborhood is still over-parked and is not entirely consistent with BART’s TOD policy and
guidelines which recommend against parking minimums and recommend lower parking maximums (1
space per unit for residential and 2.5 spaces/1,000 square feet for non-residential). All land uses should
have parking maximums, and there is currently no maximum for the Business Park designation.
Eliminating parking minimums and reducing parking maximums can help reduce the cost of housing,
consume less valuable land near transit and reduce associated environmental costs, such as water
pollution from increased impervious surfaces.



Station area land use and densities.

BART is pleased with the INP land use plan. The diversity of the residential and non-residential uses has
great potential to achieve a vibrant TOD environment. Additionally, land uses are well distributed,
minimizing exposure of future residents to Toxic Air Contaminants (TACs) by concentrating office uses
along the north side of I-580, near the BART station, while most new residential uses would be located at
least 500 feet away from 1-580 to meet the Bay Area Quality Management District’s (BAAQMDs)
regulations.

BART acknowledges the City’s efforts to plan for higher densities in the INP area and that the plan will
meet the current Plan Bay Area Priority Development Area (PDA) goals and BART’s TOD Performance
Targets, if the plan is implemented as currently envisioned. However, where possible, it is important to
have a more compact footprint within the %- (most important) and %-mile radius of the station to:

1) Generate the highest level of ridership commensurate with a regional transit investment;

2) Address our regional housing crisis; and

3) Achieve regional greenhouse gas reduction targets.

BART would like to see higher densities as suggested in the detailed comments below.

Pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure. BART acknowledges and supports the multiple pedestrian and
bicycle features proposed in the INP, meeting many of BART's Multimodal Access Design Guidelines
(MADG) recommendations, including: pedestrian-scale wayfinding, 6’ minimum clear sidewalk for all the
street types, extensive bike lanes and minimizing lane widths for several street types to enable safer, more
inviting space for pedestrians and cyclists.

The plan emphasizes a connected bicycle and pedestrian network to access the BART station, which is
consistent with BART’'s own 2016 Station Access Policy. However, the plan’s approach focuses on
potentially costly underpasses and overpasses. BART is concerned about ability to create high-quality
walking and biking station access for BART riders from the neighborhood, given the high-level of
investment needed for grade-separated pedestrian crossings. Nevertheless, these improvements are still
less expensive than providing additional structured parking, and BART urges the City to prioritize bicycle
and pedestrian infrastructure and conditions over additional parking and to make that priority clear in this
plan.

Specifically, BART is concerned about the Isabel Avenue (Isabel Path) undercrossing. Due to increasing
incidence of homelessness and drug use in the Bay Area, we are sensitive to potential personal safety and
security issues often associated with pedestrian grade-separated crossings. Because of these concerns
and higher comfort levels for users, BART recommends an at-grade crossing at this location. If the City
does move forward with the Isabel Path however, a full funding plan will be critical, since it serves as the
main pedestrian corridor to the station. Additionally, BART urges the City to consider the operating and
maintenance costs associated with this type of infrastructure. If the space is not well-maintained and does
not provide a high-level of safety and security, it could lead to detrimental effects on BART patron access
and usage.



Detailed Isabel Neighborhood Plan comments

Chapter 2: Land Use

1.

Figure 2-1: The transition and village uses east of the BART parking structure south of 1-580 should
be higher density -- this is the area shown as agricultural in the existing uses map, so it can be
intensified, and is within the 1/4-mile radius of the station. Suggest all residential within 1/4-mile
be designated “Core” and the remainder be designated “Village,” except for the parcels backing
up on Stetson Way. There doesn't need to be “Transition” up against the park/highway, and Sutter
Street should provide enough buffer to densify higher than “Transition.”

Table 2-2:

e BART TOD Guidelines calls for a minimum net density 75 du/ac minimum for development
on BART parcels (See Section 2.1). The BART parcels within a %4 do meet the 75 du/ac.
However, we recommend that all parcels within % mile also aspire to this requirement.

e  We recommend increasing Village minimum stories to 3

e  We recommend increasing Center minimum stories to 4

¢ We recommend increasing Core minimum stories to 4 and maximum to 7 stories

Figure 2-5: This figure shows narrow bike facilities and sidewalks, while parking is overabundant
(assuming the curb here is meant for parking). Would suggest refining the rendering.

Page 2-38: Section 2-5 Airway Business Park Zoning District which is partially within the % mile
buffer is concerning for the following reasons:

e Auto-oriented uses (gas stationé, auto dealerships, etc.) are allowed

® Lot coverage is minimal {max 45%), creating a scale of community more amenable to
driving than walking, biking, or riding transit

e The zone is highly parked for any TOD, especially a TOD at least partially within 1/2 mile
of the BART station

Chapter 3: Transportation

5.

Page 3-7: For Bike Streets, bicycle wayfinding is important, especially since Isabel Ave bisects the
area, making BART less visible in the core.
Figure 3-8 and Figure 3-9: :

e Elsewhere utility zone is called out as 4-6'. Assuming that is also the case here, the
sidewalk is very narrow, especially given the overly generous travel lane width. These
measurements would make for a less than ideal pedestrian environment.

* Given more intense traffic on these streets, Class | bike lanes would be more appropriate.

Figure 3-10: Specify Bike Lane typology.

“Figure 3-12

¢ Recommend scaling back the number of undercrossings and pedestrian bridges in the
planning area. In particular, BART recommends enhancing an at-grade crossing of the
Isabel Path as an alternative to undercrossing C12.
* Recommend ensure that underpass alignment C2 stays close to trail network so that there
aren't any conflicts with the BART access road.
Page 3-14: In reference to text “While the Plan envisions the Isabel Path as an under-crossing
running beneath Isabel Avenue,” part of the sentence appears to be missing.



10. Figure 3-14: Add crosswalk on Portola Avenue east of Isabel Ave.
11. Table 3-3
e See discussion in general comments and BART TOD Guidelines
12. Page 3-30: Under P-TRA-22, consider including pricing strategies.
13. Page 3-32: Under P-TRA-29, consider removing parking minimums.

Chapter 5: Urban Design

14. Figure 5-4

* Assuming these retail spaces are quieter at certain parts of the day, this undercrossing
could be daunting to pedestrians, particularly if the retail isn't busy at night.

e Highly recommend a high-quality, at-grade crossing for pedestrians and bicyclists that
facilitates access between the community and the BART station while also enhancing the
livability of the neighborhood.

15. Figure 5-7:

e The Figure indicates a parking garage north of the station directly across from the bus
station on BART property within an area designated as office core. BART assumes this is
an error since is not identified as part of the parking overlay in the land use maps. Please
clarify.

* Has office/retail delivery/garbage been considered? Driveways? How will deliveries/pick

up happen in relation to on-street parking, bus needs, off street parking accesses, etc.
16. Figures 5-8 and 5-9

® Please confirm clearance height of undercrossing as it appears very shallow which can
enhance the perception of decreased personal safety and security.
17. Page 5-42: In reference to “Design Guidelines,” In general, this section would benefit from a
parking map/diagram or table to demonstration total parking.

Draft Environmental Impact Report Comments

Chapter 4: Analysis of Alternatives
1. Page 4-4: In reference to the Enhanced Parking Alternative, see parking comments from the INP
above.
2. Table 4.2-2: Car-Light Alternative Vehicular and Parking Ratios are more aligned with BART TOD
Guidelines.



JPA"Q0L JO [9ABIL/S30p/53[1}/1NeJop/SotiS/A0S Heq MMM//-SaTIy
“‘P00T Atenuer ‘UOS||IM ‘0JBAIDD ‘PUNT "DIUIOJIDD Ul JUBWAO[aN3Q PAIUSLIO-HSUD.L fO SIIISLIBIIDIDYY [2ADI]

4

spsloid |enuapisay

uoels woyy 3ouersiq o} Ansuss e



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION

TO: Board of Directors Date: April 6, 2018
FROM: Controller-Treasurer

SUBJECT: QUARTERLY REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER-TREASURER

Attached is the Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer for the quarter ending December 31,
2017 which will be presented to the Board on April 12, 2018.

Please feel free to call me at 510-464-6070 with any questions you may have.

A 1
(M;. Poblete




Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure

July 2017

ADDENDUM

0l

GROUP

Michael J. Gennaco
323 821 0586
7142 Trask Avenue
Playa del Rey, CA 90293
OIRGroup.com

Aaron B. Zisser
628 400 1203
Oakland, CA

civilrightsconsulting.com





INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF THE BART
OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE: ADDENDUM

The Model Should Set Out With More Clarity Procedures for Replacement of BPCRB
Members.

A question has arisen since the issuance of our initial June 2017 report, and we were asked to
address an issue surrounding the replacement of BPCRB members. The specific question was
whether a new BART Director may, prior to the end of the BPCRB member’s term of
appointment, replace the BPCRB member appointed by that BART Director’s predecessor. The
Model is currently silent on this specific issue. Chapter 2-04 of the Model does address removal
for cause “including but not limited to breach of ethics, confidentiality, or criminal conviction”
and allows for removal by a resolution adopted by the majority of the Board of Directors. As
stated in our Report, Chapter 2-04 of the Model also calls for automatic termination of a BPCRB
member after three Board meeting absences in a calendar year.*

Whether the Model currently provides authority for an incoming Director to remove a BPCRB
member unilaterally is not specifically addressed by the current Model. The fact that the Model
does not provide clear guidance on this issue suggests a need to amend the Model in order to do
s0. Because our project was focused on improving the Model through revisions, we offer our
thoughts below.

From a civilian oversight perspective, modifying the Model to expressly allow a Director to
remove a BPCRB member appointed by his/her predecessor could be seen by some as
undermining the independence of the BPCRB. If a BPCRB member can be replaced by an
incoming Director for no reason, that BPCRB member may be concerned that making decisions
on individual cases, policies, or systemic issues that are controversial could then be a basis for
his/her removal. Such a tenuous situation may also dissuade otherwise interested individuals
from seeking appointment to the BPCRB.

On the other hand, the BPCRB’s strength and authority arise in part from the support and
confidence of the elected Directors in the member and the current Model appointment process
clearly provides Directors the ability to each select a member with virtually unfettered discretion.
Consistent with that discretion, a persuasive argument could be made that an incoming Director
should have the authority to replace a BPCRB member with a new appointee who better reflects
the values, interests, and philosophy of the incoming Director.

In sum, the Model should be clarified to specifically speak to this issue. Potential options to
modifying the Model would be to expressly prohibit removal of BPCRB members except for
unexcused absences or good cause or provide incoming Directors a brief window such as 60
days during which they could replace the outgoing Director’s appointee. Requiring the incoming

YIn our initial report, we have recommended modification of this provision in order to provide
relief for excused absences.





Director to act within a brief period of time reduces the perception that a BPCRB member is
being removed because the Director is unhappy with actions taken in a particular matter.

Recommendation Fifty-Four: The Model should be revised to clarify whether a newly-seated
BART Director may unilaterally remove his or her predecessor’s BPCRB appointee and
specify any time limits for doing so.






Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure

June 2017

0l

GROUP

Michael J. Gennaco
323 821 0586
7142 Trask Avenue
Playa del Rey, CA 90293
OIRGroup.com

Aaron B. Zisser
628 400 1203
Oakland, CA

civilrightsconsulting.com





TABLE OF CONTENTS

. EXECULIVE SUMIMAKY ...ttt ettt e s re e beenteaneesneenneenee e 3

L. INEFOTUCTION ...t bbbttt ne bbb ene e 6
AL BACKGIOUNG. ...t 6
B.  Scope and MethodOIOgy ..........coeiueiiieieieisi e 7
C.  ACKNOWIEAGEMENTS ...ttt bbb n et n e n e 9

1. Findings and ReCOMMENALIONS..........c.cciveiiiiiiieie e 11
A.  Clarifying Oversight’s SCOPE ............cccoiiiiiiiiiii e 11
B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities....................ccooiiiiiiii 12
C. Making the Complaint Process Available to All ... 14
D. Enhancing OIPA INVESTIGALIONS ........cccvciiiiiiiiiiee sttt sttt sre st sre e re e 14
E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA INVeStigations .............ccovrereinineniineneseneenns 18
F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA. ... 23
G. Developing a Mediation Program..........ccocieiiiiiiine et 24
H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical INCIdeNnts ..........cccceovivviiiiniininineene 25
I.  Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of Force................ccc.ccooenininiiiniinee 25
J.  Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in BART PD’s Early Identification System

26

K. Increasing OIPA’s Role as AUitor...............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 27
L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development ................ccocovviiiiiiiiiiii e 28
M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s Policies and Practices..................c........... 29
N. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board.... 30
O. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board .................. 31
P.  Providing Increased Transparency Authority for BART Oversight ..., 34
Q. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART OVErSighL.......ccccoeiiiiiiciccicce et 34





. EXxecutive Summary

Overview of the review: Chapter 3-01 of the BART oversight model (hereinafter the
“Model”) provides as follows:

The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate
the BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation
to determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make
adjustments to the system to improve its continued performance. This evaluation
shall in no way be intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight
structure.!

This review and report were commissioned and conducted in furtherance of BART’s compliance
with this provision of the Model; that is, to facilitate the Board of Directors’ evaluation of the
oversight structure.

Our review began in January 2017. We interviewed the stakeholders whose input is expressly
set out in the Model, but we conducted many additional interviews with a broad range of other
significant parties. We ensured that the evaluation takes account of the original impetus for the
establishment of the oversight system — the January 1, 2009, shooting of Oscar Grant by a BART
Police Department (BART PD) officer — as well as the subsequent systemic reviews of policies
and practices. Because oversight’s effectiveness depends heavily on the community’s trust,
engagement, and support, we placed a high premium on community attitudes and concerns
regarding the oversight system. We measured these factors in a variety of ways.

During our review, all individuals we met were generous with their time, accessibility, and
candor. Representatives of the Board of Directors, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and
the BART PD were particularly helpful in providing both relevant documents and important
insights regarding the issues discussed herein. The Office of the Independent Police Auditor
(OIPA) was especially helpful in facilitating the mechanics of our work, and was continually
available to provide documents and important perspective. To the degree that our findings and
recommendations may help enhance the current civilian oversight system, it reflects the
cooperation, assistance, and acumen provided by these stakeholders.

The oversight system: The BART PD oversight system, established in July 2010 following a
process that involved community input, consists of the OIPA and the BART Police Citizen
Review Board. According to the Model, OIPA (with a current staffing level of three) is to
conduct investigations of complaints alleging serious officer misconduct, make
recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, audit Internal Affairs (IA) investigations,
conduct close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, conduct community outreach, issue

! The Oversight Model is available on the website of the Office of the Independent Police
Auditor: https://www.bart.gov/about/policeauditor and attached to this report as Attachment A.




https://www.bart.gov/about/policeauditor



public reports on investigation outcomes and trends, and provide staffing and other resources to
the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

The BART Police Citizen Review Board consists of 11 members. Each of the nine Directors
selects one member, while one is appointed by the police associations, and one is “at-large.”
According to the Model, the Review Board is to hold monthly public meetings, review OIPA’s
investigations, review BART PD and OIPA recommendations regarding BART PD policies,
make its own recommendations regarding BART PD policies, conduct community outreach, and
issue reports on its activities. Its members are also authorized under the Model to participate in
officer and executive hiring.

Overview of findings: We found that the Model devised in response to the tragic shooting of
Oscar Grant created two oversight entities that have served a valuable purpose in establishing
effective civilian oversight over an agency that had no such previous external influences. The
fact that we offer numerous recommendations designed to strengthen and clarify the original
Model should in no way diminish the work of those who have worked diligently to fulfill the
overarching objectives of accountability, advancing progressive police practices, and fostering
greater community trust in law enforcement. Instead, this Report seeks to fulfill a key part of the
Model’s original vision: one that recognized that a constructive re-assessment of BART’s
nascent oversight program should be built into the design.

From that starting point, we found several areas in which the Model could benefit from revision
and reform. These include significant omissions in the Model relating to investigations and
auditing authority, and the ambiguities in provisions relating to outreach, reporting,
investigations, and policy recommendations.

The review features a total of fifty-three recommendations. They range in scope from broad
issues of jurisdiction and structure to more particular or technical adjustments to specific
provisions in the Model. Among the key categories that produced specific suggestions for
reform are the following:

Recommendations to expand authority and related findings: We recommend expanding the
oversight system’s authority in two areas:

e Broader audit authority: First, we recommend expanding the auditing authority to
allow OIPA to review any operational aspect of BART PD — as opposed to merely
reviewing IA’s operations.

e Investigations absent a complaint: Second, we recommend authorizing OIPA to
conduct its own independent investigation or review into any use of force or potential act
of misconduct without the need to await receipt of a qualifying citizen complaint.

Other recommendations and findings:

e Independence from each other’s roles and responsibilities should be reinforced through
structural changes to OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board for the sake of
their respective and mutual effectiveness. OIPA’s obligations relating to staffing the





Review Board should be removed, the requirement of a Review Board performance
evaluation of the IPA should be eliminated, and orientation and training for Review
Board members should be enhanced to delineate roles and responsibilities.

Case Auditing should be conducted in a more consistent and thorough manner that
allows for not only pre-completion input into the 1A investigation, but also the ability to
influence dispositions and discipline prior to BART PD’s final decision.

A Systemic Auditing protocol should be developed and implemented. OIPA should
analyze trends and patterns, and it should be involved in BART PD procedures relating to
use-of-force reviews and early identification of officers who may require remedial
interventions.

Investigations should address a broader range of complaints; any person should be able
to file a complaint; and written protocols should be developed regarding investigative
techniques, procedures, and coordination with other BART components to ensure
confidence in OIPA’s investigations and to ensure that it receives all complaints coming
in to BART.

Use of Force Review should become an arena in which OIPA more regularly
participates, including assessing individual incidents, and contributing to holistic
discussions of tactics and training, and other potential elements of constructive feedback.

Policy, procedure, and practice recommendations should constitute a regular and
formalized element of OIPA’s interactions with and influence on BART PD.

Public reporting by OIPA should be enhanced, in the form of greater detail with regard
to its case monitoring role of internal investigations initiated by BART PD. Similarly,
OIPA should report on the increased activities proposed in this report.

Mediation should continue to be studied for ways to make it more attractive to
complainants and officers.

An oversight system evaluation should be conducted periodically.





1. Introduction

A. Background.

BART PD: Established in 1969, BART PD is “comprised of 296 personnel, of which 206 are
sworn peace officers,” according to BART PD’s website.” BART PD covers the entire BART
system, which extends into four counties. The Chief of Police reports to the General Manager
(GM), who is appointed by the Board of Directors.

Shooting of Oscar Grant and aftermath: On January 1, 2009, Oscar Grant was fatally shot by
BART police officer Johannes Mehserle on the Fruitvale Station platform. On August 11, 2009,
the law firm Meyers Nave issued a report regarding policies and practices “relevant to the”” Oscar
Grant shooting.’

From June 2009 to September 2009, the National Organization of Black Law Enforcement
Executives (NOBLE) conducted a review of BART PD’s policies and practices, and it issued a
report on January 1, 2010, which identified areas for improvement in a number of areas of BART
PD’s operations.® A follow-up audit was conducted in 2013, and BART PD continues to report
on its ongoing efforts to implement the recommended reforms.

In June 2010, Mehserle was convicted of involuntary manslaughter and acquitted of murder and
voluntary manslaughter charges.

BART Public Safety Accountability Act: In September 2009 — immediately following the
Meyers Nave report and before the completion of the NOBLE report — a bill was proposed in the
state legislature to create an independent oversight system for BART PD. In July of 2010, the
BART Public Safety Accountability Act was enacted. It directed the BART Board of Directors
to “establish an office of independent police auditor, reporting directly to the board, to
investigate complaints against district police personnel” and assigned the following “powers and
duties” to the appointed auditor”:

(1) To investigate those complaints or allegations of on-duty misconduct and off-duty
unlawful activity by district police personnel, within the independent police auditor’s
purview as it is set by the board.

2 “History of the BART Police Department,” http://m.bart.gov/about/police/employment.

8 Meyers Nave, “Review of BART PD Policies, Practices and Procedures Re: New Year’s Day
2009,” 1 (Aug. 2009), available at
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Meyers _Nave Public_Report.pdf.

*NOBLE, “BART Management Audit,” (Jan. 2010) [NOBLE Audit (2010)], available at
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/NOBLE Final Report.pdf.

5 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(a) (2016).



http://m.bart.gov/about/police/employment

https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Meyers_Nave_Public_Report.pdf

https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/NOBLE_Final_Report.pdf



(2) To reach independent findings as to the validity of each complaint.

(3) To recommend appropriate disciplinary action against district police personnel for those
complaints determined to be sustained.”

The Act also authorized the Board to create “a citizen review board to participate in
recommending appropriate disciplinary action.””

Oversight Model: Pursuant to the legislation, the BART Board of Directors formed a committee
to study what type of oversight should be established. There were numerous public hearings
with robust input from members of the community. The Model eventually promulgated called
for an independent police auditor, as well as a citizen review board. Responsibilities of the
oversight system — detailed in this report — included: investigations of complaints alleging
serious officer misconduct, recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, auditing of
Internal Affairs investigations, close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, community
outreach, and issuing public reports on investigation outcomes and trends.

OIPA: The OIPA is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of Directors. OIPA consists
of three staff, including the Independent Police Auditor (IPA), an investigator, and an
administrative support person.

BART Police Citizen Review Board: The Review Board consists of 11 members, including
nine members appointed by the respective Directors, a member appointed by the police
associations, and an at-large member selected through a formal application process.

B. Scope and Methodology
Scope: Chapter 3-01 of the Oversight Model provides as follows:

The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate the
BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation to
determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make adjustments to the
system to improve its continued performance. This evaluation shall in no way be
intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight structure.

Even though the Model calls for an evaluation after one year of implementation, no assessment
has ever been conducted since the inception of BART’s civilian oversight. While this lapse was
unfortunate, it is a testament to OIPA and the Board of Directors that this independent review
has now been commissioned.

We sought to answer two basic sets of questions:

5 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(b)(1)-(3) (2016).
" CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(c) (2016).





e Does the oversight structure perform as contemplated in the language of the Model? If
not, what ambiguities or omissions in the Model’s language may impact optimum
performance?

e Could the oversight structure be improved or enhanced to further the oversight system’s
goals, as articulated in best practices and understood by the communities it serves?

Overview of methodology: To these ends, we evaluated:
e The language of the Model for ambiguity or weaknesses.

e Whether practice could benefit by providing clearer authority, expansion of duties, and
reconsideration of priorities.

e The perceptions and concerns of communities BART serves and BART system
stakeholders, as well as national best practices, to gauge what changes would help to
instill additional trust in the oversight structure and aid in serving its goals.

Interviews: Our review began in January 2017 and entailed more than 50 interviews with nearly
four dozen stakeholders. These included OIPA staff; BART Police Citizen Review Board
members; seven BART directors; local oversight professionals; local advocacy groups, including
the local ACLU affiliate and the Coalition on Homelessness; police associations; IA officers; and
BART PD command staff.

Community interest and concerns: Just as it was essential that we speak with police officials
and representatives, community feedback — particularly input from impacted communities,
including communities of color — was of critical importance in our review. This is because the
effectiveness of civilian oversight depends heavily on the community’s trust in its independence,
authority, and capacity.

Community members — especially those who have perceived or borne the brunt of systemic
unfairness and an adversarial relationship with law enforcement — are much more likely to
provide information and insight to an oversight entity that they consider fair, meaningful, and
empowered. Those contributions from the community can, in turn, strengthen the legitimacy and
the effectiveness of the oversight entity. And this dynamic can ultimately increase community
trust in the police department, as well — the public is reassured by the sense of accountability and
gives credence to the positive acknowledgements of progress that the oversight entity can
provide. Accordingly, our recommendations draw heavily on what we learned from and about
the communities served by BART.

We assessed community interest through interviews with individual residents as well as political
leaders, leaders of community and advocacy groups, and leaders of other Bay Area oversight
agencies who could speak to broader community sentiment. We also gauged community interest
and concerns through other Bay Area initiatives on oversight, as well as input provided during
the original 2009 process.





Finally, we sought to account for any countervailing concerns, with an eye toward maximizing
the understanding and acceptance of all key stakeholders, including those subject to oversight
and those with contrasting viewpoints on how it should function.

BART Police Citizen Review Board sessions and documentation: We attended three Review
Board sessions and requested and reviewed additional documentation, including:

The Model and earlier drafts of the Model

Review Board bylaws

Complaints and OIPA investigation reports

Notifications provided to officers and complainants

OIPA monitoring reports regarding IA investigations

OIPA and Review Board reports

Review Board agendas and minutes

OIPA and Review Board policy recommendations

IPA and Review Board member selection materials

The 2010 NOBLE report, the follow-up 2013 audit, and the 2009 Meyers Nave report
Outreach materials

Public information regarding the process for developing the oversight Model, community
members’ observations of the oversight system, and serious incidents involving BART
PD officers

Best practices and standards: In addition to drawing from our own experience and exposure to
various oversight models and practices, we consulted best practices and standards from a variety
of sources, including the National Association for the Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement
(NACOLE) reports and reports by other professional organizations; scholarly literature on
oversight; the NACOLE code of ethics (cited in the Model); the Core Principles for an Effective
Police Auditor’s Office (cited in the Model); U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division
investigations and consent decrees® and COPS Collaborative Reform Initiative reports’; and the
Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21% Century Policing (May 2015).%

C. Acknowledgements

We received enormous support throughout the review process from a range of stakeholders and
are grateful to each person who took the time to sit down with us for an interview. We were able
to interview most members of the Board of Directors, who expressed strong interest in the
review. Some helpfully directed us to other stakeholders. BART PD’s executive staff, Internal

® The U.S. Department of Justice publishes its findings letters and settlement agreements on its
website: https://www.justice.gov/crt/special-litigation-section-cases-and-matters0.

® The U.S. Department of Justice catalogues its COPS assessment reports:
https://cops.usdoj.gov/collaborativereform.

19 Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21% Century Policing (May 2015), available at
https://cops.usdoj.qov/pdf/taskforce/taskforce finalreport.pdf.




https://www.justice.gov/crt/special-litigation-section-cases-and-matters0

https://cops.usdoj.gov/collaborativereform

https://cops.usdoj.gov/pdf/taskforce/taskforce_finalreport.pdf



Affairs investigators, and the police associations, as well as the OIPA staff were open and candid
and provided invaluable insights.

The current IPA enlisted this review, provided a comprehensive list of potential interviewees,
contacted many of them to help schedule interviews, and was readily available for ongoing
questions. The IPA provided critical OIPA documents and spent many hours sharing his
understanding of and views on the system with us. We applaud his energy and interest and note
that this review likely would not have happened but for his proactivity and creativity. The IPA’s
embracing of this peer review process, and full cooperation with it, is testament to an admirable
growth mindset.

Finally, we are grateful to the family of Oscar Grant, who remain constructively engaged in the
subjects of oversight and accountability, and who took the time in that spirit to share their
experience and suggestions with us.

10





I11.Findings and Recommendations

BART’s current oversight model has many admirable features and has served its transit
community well for almost six years. The Model provides OIPA with access to the most
sensitive of Police Department records and gives it the ability to conduct independent
investigations, audit internal investigations conducted by BART PD, and make policy
recommendations. Moreover, the Model provides the BART Police Citizen Review Board with
an opportunity to meaningfully weigh in on complaint investigations and recommend
disciplinary outcomes, an authority that very few community-based oversight entities possess.

However, the Model has ambiguities and places unnecessary limits on oversight authority. This
is due in large part to requiring the existence of a complaint before authority can be exercised. In
addition, the Model saddles OIPA with administrative functions for the BART Police Citizen
Review Board, blurring the lines between oversight entities with complementary yet distinct and
independent roles. The recommendations set out below — which flow from an evaluation process
expressly contemplated by the original model —are intended to provide clarity regarding both
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s authority. The recommendations suggest a
course that could result in more impactful oversight for the benefit of the community and BART
PD alike.

A. Clarifying Oversight’s Scope

The Model Should Make Explicit that OIPA’s Oversight Scope Includes All Employees of
BART PD and Any Potential Violations of Policy.

Currently the Model states that OIPA has the authority to exercise its oversight duties with
regard to “any and all law enforcement activities or personnel operating under the authority of”
BART. We have been informed that this passage has been interpreted to include non-sworn
members of BART. However, for purposes of clarity, the Model should indicate that all
employees of BART are within OIPA’s oversight authority.

Many of the non-sworn employees of a police agency have considerable interaction with the
public and are indirectly imbued with the authority of the law enforcement entity for which they
work. Accordingly, those employees often have significant influence on whether the public is
appropriately served by the agency. For that reason, all police department employees should be
subject to civilian oversight’s ambit.

Moreover, at least as to sworn officers, the Model should make clear that any potential violations
of policy should fall within the ambit of OIPA. Law and practice has also recognized that there
is a clear nexus between off-duty conduct and on duty responsibilities for sworn officers. For
that reason, it has been long held that police officers can be held accountable for off-duty
misconduct inconsistent with their duties and responsibility to uphold the law. For example,
officers who are found to have engaged in domestic violence or impaired driving can be
independently sanctioned for that conduct by their employing agencies. In order to ensure
accountability for these actions, progressive oversight entities have recognized that they must

11





similarly be able to exercise oversight over off-duty officer conduct. The Model for OIPA must
ensure that such oversight authority exists over BART PD.

Recommendation One: The Model should be revised to make clear that the scope of OIPA’s
authority extends to non-sworn employees of BART PD and to all potential misconduct
involving sworn officers whether on or off duty.

B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities

OIPA Should Consider Revising Its Approach Towards Monitoring Internal Affairs
Investigations Conducted by BART PD Toward Real-Time Monitoring and More
Transparency.

Pursuant to the Model, OIPA has the authority to audit internal affairs investigations conducted
by BART PD to determine if the investigations are “complete, thorough, objective and fair.”
OIPA also has the ability to “require” follow-up investigation into any citizen complaint or
allegation that is handled by BART PD.

OIPA has, in the past, exercised this authority provided by the Model when it determined that a
BART PD investigation did not meet investigative standards. However, we are aware of a recent
instance when there was resistance by BART PD after the Auditor identified an incomplete and
substandard investigation and sought follow-up investigative work. BART PD should be
reminded of the non-discretionary language in the Model requiring it to conduct follow-up
investigation when requested by OIPA. To ensure an effective remedy should there be any
BART PD compliance issues, the Auditor should be able to present any significant lapse to the
attention of the General Manager, the Board of Directors, and the BART Police Citizen Review
Board and set out the incident in its public reporting.

The Model provides the opportunity for OIPA to engage with BART PD as it proceeds with its
internal investigative process. That ability has been enhanced by OIPA’s direct access to IA’s
investigative database. We have been informed that OIPA regularly uses its database access to
audit investigations being conducted by BART PD and has provided input and suggestions such
as identifying additional witnesses to interview. OIPA also provides feedback on completed
investigations to BART PD.™

However, to the degree that OIPA provides such auditing of the Department’s internal affairs
investigations, most of the feedback occurs after the case has been completed and a disposition
has already been rendered. At that point, any post hoc input from OIPA has a potentially limited
impact on disposition decisions made by the Police Department since the disposition has already
been determined and subject officers and complainants notified about that decision.

Another approach to auditing of BART PD cases that appears to be workable within the current
Model would be for OIPA to deploy “real-time” monitoring of cases. Under that paradigm,

1 To the degree there remains any uncertainty, OIPA should be provided the authority to
monitor any internal investigations conducted by BART PD, including internally generated
investigations.

12





OIPA would audit active Internal Affairs investigations, serve as a resource during the pendency
of the investigations, and, upon their completion, would review each case for completeness and
objectivity. OIPA would then provide any feedback to Internal Affairs, suggesting any
additional investigation prior to the case being completed. Similarly, prior to BART decision-
makers’ determination as to whether the evidence indicates a violation of policy, OIPA would
offer independent recommendations on investigative outcomes. Finally, on founded cases, OIPA
would present its recommendations with regard to the appropriate level of discipline. While
BART PD would have ultimate authority regarding each of these internal decisions, OIPA’s real
time involvement in these decisions would likely make its input more impactful than the “after
the fact” interaction currently deployed.*?

In addition to providing quality assurance in real time for thorough investigations and evidence-
based determinations on outcomes, OIPA could and should weigh in on other important
investigative decisions. Sometimes, allegations of misconduct implicate potential crimes. The
decision whether to forward such allegations to the District Attorney is one in which OIPA
should participate. Additionally, under this approach, OIPA could play a helpful role in the
proper scoping of investigations.

As importantly, OIPA should document and report on its auditing function. Currently, there is
no detailed report of OIPA’s auditing of BART PD cases, and the data reported regarding
discipline and the outcomes by investigating agency (i.e., OIPA versus IA) is unclear. If OIPA
decides to transition its current auditing function into real-time monitoring, it should
significantly enhance its reporting of this function to the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
the Board of Directors, and the public. OIPA should set out a narrative of each case audited,
whether it found the investigation adequate, any input made by OIPA regarding improving the
investigations, the disposition, and, in founded cases, the discipline imposed. OIPA should also
report on the degree to which it concurred or disagreed with BART PD’s case determinations.
This increased level of transparency would provide stakeholders an important window into the
Police Department’s accountability system and an independent assessment of its vibrancy. 13

Recommendation Two: OIPA should consider modifying its monitoring function of BART PD
internal affairs investigations to “real-time” monitoring, offering recommendations on the
strength of investigations and appropriateness of dispositions prior to BART PD completing
the process.

12 \We have been informed that, to the credit of the former Chief, occasionally OIPA had been
asked in real time to provide input regarding investigative or disposition determinations by
BART PD. Our recommendation is for a more comprehensive expansion of this encouraging
dynamic.

3 We leave to OIPA to determine based on its resources what portion of BART PD’s internal

investigations it could monitor in real time. One potential “bright line” suggestion would be to
monitor all internal investigations conducted by the Department’s Internal Affairs unit.

13





Recommendation Three: Should OIPA move to real-time monitoring, it should be involved in
decisions regarding whether a matter should be forwarded to the District Attorney for criminal
review, and the appropriate scoping of an investigation.

Recommendation Four: OIPA should make its reported data on investigations and
recommended discipline clearer and should publicly report its involvement and auditing
functions in detail, setting out its assessment of the quality of each investigation and the
appropriateness of each disposition and disciplinary determination. The Model should be
modified to provide OIPA the express authority to report any resistance by BART PD to
conduct additional investigation to the attention of the Board of Directors, the General
Manager, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the public.

C. Making the Complaint Process Available to All

The Model Should Be Revised to Allow Any Person to File a Complaint with OIPA or the
BART Police Citizen Review Board Against Any BART Employee.

Currently, the Model provides for a very limited universe of persons who may file a complaint
with OIPA or the BART Police Citizen Review Board. Only “victims of on-duty police
misconduct, a victim’s parent or guardian or a witness to misconduct” are permitted to file
complaints against “a BART police officer.” The Model’s limitation on who qualifies as a
complainant has led to circumstances in which OIPA has been handcuffed in its ability to
investigate concerning incidents.

In one recent case, a widow of a person who died in custody did not qualify as a “complainant”
under the Model’s definition. And in another case, a concerning use of force incident that
occurred on a train platform, was captured on video, was uploaded on You Tube, and received
thousands of views but did not qualify for OIPA purview because a qualified complainant did
not file with the Auditor.

There is no rational justification for denying access to any individual who desires to file a
complaint with BART’s oversight entities. In fact, progressive oversight entities even allow
receipt of anonymous complaints. In addition, for the reasons discussed above, OIPA should
have clear authority to investigate complaints against any BART PD employee, not just police
officers.

Recommendation Five: The Model should be revised to provide any persons the ability to file a
complaint with OIPA and/or the BART Police Citizen Review Board against any BART PD
employee.

D. Enhancing OIPA Investigations

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide OIPA the Discretion to Investigate Any
Complaint Received.

Currently, the Model provides OIPA the authority to investigate “all complaints of allegations of
police officer misconduct regarding unnecessary or excessive use of police force, racial profiling,
sexual orientation bias, sexual harassment, and the use of deadly force, suspicious and wrongful

14





deaths.” It is inconsistent with progressive oversight practices to limit OIPA’s investigative
authority to these categories. Instead of setting out what OIPA “can do,” the Model should
provide OIPA the discretion and authority to investigate any complaint received.

Recommendation Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the ability to investigate
any allegation of misconduct that implicates the policies of BART PD.**

OIPA and BART PD Should Consider New Investigative Models Designed to Create
Efficiencies and Avoid Duplicative Investigations.

Currently, when OIPA determines to investigate a complaint and proceeds with its investigation,
BART PD conducts its own investigation into the same allegations. This paradigm results in two
investigations of the same allegation with the same purpose — to determine whether the facts
indicate a violation of BART PD policies. In addition to the inefficiencies of having two
investigations being conducted for the same purpose, such an investigative scheme has the
potential of requiring the complainant, witnesses, and involved officers to be interviewed twice,
with any inconsistencies being used to undermine the investigation if a disciplinary
determination is challenged. Moreover, the existence of two investigations with separate review
criteria could lead to disparate results based on the same set of facts.

For these reasons, we recommend that OIPA and BART PD examine the possibility of
developing an investigative paradigm whereby the Auditor has initial review authority on
complaint allegations made to his Office. In those cases, the Auditor should determine whether
to investigate the case or refer all or some of the allegations to BART PD for investigation. Any
allegations referred to BART PD should be monitored by OIPA. BART PD should defer any
investigation of allegations assumed by OIPA. Such a paradigm would eliminate the
inefficiencies of two investigations undertaken for the same purpose and the potential negative
consequences discussed above.

Recommendation Seven: OIPA and BART PD should develop an investigative paradigm
whereby OIPA would determine whether to investigate any complaint allegations received
initially by the Office and BART PD would defer investigating allegations that the Auditor
opted to investigate.

OIPA Should Develop an Investigative Handbook.

Too frequently, investigative authority is provided to entities with little guidance or direction on
how to exercise that authority. This has proven true in our experience regarding police agencies
and their internal review processes, and oversight agencies are often susceptible to the same

4 To the degree that our recommendations provide clear authority for OIPA to investigate
allegations of misconduct, it may become necessary for the Auditor and BART PD to work out
protocols regarding which entity investigates which allegations. One “bright line” rule that may
work is for the entity that initially receives the allegation to take the investigative lead. We are
confident, however, that OIPA and the Police Department will be able to work out these
jurisdictional questions.

15





omissions. OIPA apparently falls within this paradigm. While, to its credit, OIPA did create
investigative templates and standard formatting for its investigations, principles of investigation
were not set out in any handbook or manual. Such a handbook is particularly important for
internal investigations of police officers, given the unique substantive elements and the
distinctive framework of statutory requirements set forth in California’s “Police Officer’s Bill of
Rights.”

An investigative handbook that codified basic principles would help ensure that OIPA
investigations were conducted consistent with best internal investigative practices.’> Moreover,
the development of an investigative handbook should not create a substantial resource burden.
Our experience suggests that, while the handbook should be tailored to OIPA’s oversight
responsibilities for BART PD, universal investigative principles that already exist in handbooks
of other agencies could be easily incorporated into an OIPA version.

Recommendation Eight: OIPA should develop a handbook to provide guidance and
expectations for its internal investigations.

OIPA Should Develop Internal Guidelines Regarding Investigative Timelines for
Completion of an Investigation.

Under California law, in order for discipline to be imposed, a subject police officer generally
must be informed of the agency’s intent to discipline within a year of agency knowledge of the
investigation. For that reason, with some exceptions, internal investigations of police officers
need to be completed within a year of their initiation. While police agencies and oversight
entities imbued with investigative authority recognize this statutory requirement, many recognize
the interest in completing investigations well before the one-year deadline. There are several
reasons for this.

First, if an investigation languishes unnecessarily, the complainant and subject officer will not
receive timely notice of the result. More importantly, because most discipline is intended to be
remedial, a delayed investigation will result in the remediation also being delayed. Nor does the
quality of evidence tend to improve with age; on the contrary, memories fade and a delayed
investigation can undermine the gathering of accurate and complete recollections. Finally,
collateral issues such as consideration for promotion or special assignment can be unnecessarily
delayed for the subject officer during the pendency of unresolved investigations.

Fortunately, OIPA has established a history of being timely in completing its investigations, in
part because of its relatively small caseload. However, because the recommendations set out in

1> While a qualitative review of OIPA’s internal investigations was not the focus of our inquiry,
we learned of one investigative technique that was concerning, namely the frequent use of
telephone interviews by OIPA. Investigative principles strongly favor in-person interviews
because of the natural limitations that exist if an interview is conducted over the telephone.

16





this report envision a larger caseload for OIPA, it is important to establish formal protocols for
maintaining timeliness.*®

Recommendation Nine: OIPA should set out investigative timelines in its internal protocols
that not only meet the statutory requirements but also reflect a commitment to prompt and
efficient resolution of cases.

The Model Should Be Amended so that OIPA’s Disciplinary Determinations Correspond to
Those Utilized by BART PD.

Currently, the Model states that OIPA is to recommend that the matter be “dismissed” at the
conclusion of an OIPA investigation in which the allegations are not supported by the evidence.
Such a finding is not a generally accepted outcome for internal investigations in California.
Rather, police agencies provide a menu of disposition options; for BART PD they are sustained,
not sustained, exonerated or unfounded.

We have been informed that, in practice, OIPA makes findings after its investigation consistent
with the four options available to BART PD. However, in order for the Model to conform to
current practice, the language should be revised accordingly.

Recommendation Ten: The Model should be clarified to reflect that upon the conclusion of an
OIPA investigation, OIPA should recommend a finding of sustained, not sustained,
exonerated, or unfounded.

OIPA Should Revise its Closing Letters to Provide the Complainant as Much Information
as Legally Permissible.

At the conclusion of an internal investigation, OIPA prepares a closing letter informing the
complainant of the results. Consistent with many closing letters we have reviewed, OIPA’s
closing letters are brief and provide little detail about the underlying investigation. Instead, the
notification letter simply reports the outcome without explaining the basis for the decision or the
nature of the investigative process. Complainants whose allegation is not proven (i.e.,
exonerated, unfounded, or not sustained) are left wondering about the thoroughness of the
investigation and the legitimacy of the result.

California law provides restrictions on the type of information that can be provided to a
complainant. Those restrictions, for example, have been interpreted to bar the agency from
providing precise information about the disciplinary action taken. However, there is room under
the law to give complainants more insight into the process. There is no prohibition, for example,
on providing the number of witnesses interviewed, or whether video or audio evidence existed
and was reviewed. By sharing this information, and otherwise tailoring the notification to the
unique circumstances of the case, OIPA could move away from the type of “form letter”
response that can exacerbate disappointment and undermine trust in the process. Accordingly,

18 We iterate that the ability to successfully keep to any internal timelines will be dependent on a
sufficient allocation of resources to OIPA.

17





OIPA should craft closing letters that offer insights into the process and the means by which the
result was reached.

Recommendation Eleven: OIPA should tailor its closing letters to each individual case and
provide the complainant additional information about the investigative steps taken to reach its
conclusion.

At the End of an Investigation, OIPA Should Consider Offering the Complainant the
Opportunity to View Video Evidence.

Because of the adoption of body-worn cameras and the other video surveillance available at
BART stations, there is a significant likelihood that the conduct complained about may be
captured by video evidence. Video evidence can be significantly dispositive of allegations made
against police officers. In cases in which video evidence exists and has contributed to the
decision not to sustain an allegation, it is recommended that OIPA offer the complainant the
opportunity to view the video, particularly when the complainant is the alleged victim of the
misconduct.’

Recommendation Twelve: When a concluded investigation does not result in a sustained
finding, OIPA should offer the complainant the opportunity to view any video account of the
incident.

E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA
Investigations

The Model Should Be Revised so that More Transparency is Provided Regarding the
BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Determination on Case Outcomes.

Currently the Model requires the Auditor to submit his findings to the BART Police Citizen
Review Board for consideration. Under current practice, the Review Board considers the
Auditor’s recommendations and votes in closed session regarding whether to agree or disagree
with those recommendations. The Model is silent about how that vote is reported. Current
practice is to report out the results of any vote and the vote count when not unanimous, but the
way in which individual Board members voted is not discernable.

While the case deliberation must remain private in accord with state law, there is no legal
prohibition on publicizing how each Review Board member voted. Moreover, when there is a
dissent, a rationale for the opposing votes should be crafted that could be made public.
Accordingly, and consistent with enhanced transparency, the Model should be revised to
stipulate that such information will be made public in the interest of providing further insight
into the process and outcomes.

7 Competing privacy interests may prevail in cases in which the complainant is not the person
being captured on video and in those situations OIPA should use its discretion on whether to
offer to show the video evidence.

18





There may be occasions where OIPA may be interested in presenting monitored BART PD cases
to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order to receive input and feedback. Modifying the
Model to provide the Auditor flexibility and discretion to do so is consistent with the document’s
overarching interest in gaining meaningful feedback and input from the community-based
oversight entity.

Recommendation Thirteen: The Model should be revised to instruct that the BART Police
Citizen Review Board’s vote tally by member on the Auditor’s case recommendations and
findings should be made public. In cases in which a non-unanimous majority agrees with the
Auditor’s case recommendations and findings, the dissenters should set out their rationale for
diverging from the majority’s determination.

Recommendation Fourteen: The Model should be revised to provide the Auditor the discretion
to present BART PD internal investigations to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order
to receive input and feedback.

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide More Clarity Regarding Process When BART’s
Chief Disagrees with OIPA/BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Recommendation.

Currently the Model states that, should the BART Chief of Police disagree with the findings and
recommendations of the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board, the Chief has the
ability to appeal the determination to the General Manager in a confidential personnel meeting.
The Model further states that the General Manager shall then make a decision and convey his/her
decision to the Chief, Auditor, and the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Model then
instructs the Chief to implement the General Manager’s decision.

We have been informed that this process has been used at least twice in the six-year existence of
BART’s oversight system. Based on recollection, we learned that in both cases, the Chief
communicated with the General Manager’s Office, pursuant to the Model, and the General
Manager decided to accept the Chief’s recommendations.

As implemented and as the current Model suggests, the appeal process has to date amounted to
an ex parte meeting between the Chief and the General Manager. In that process, the General
Manager only apparently heard the arguments put forth by the Chief; neither the Auditor nor the
BART Police Citizen Review Board had an opportunity to be heard or to rebut the Chief’s
arguments. Moreover, because there was no public accounting of this process, there was no
record of the Chief’s reason for disagreement or the rationale for the General Manager accepting
the Chief’s view over those of the oversight entities.

In common law jurisprudence, most “appeal” processes consist of a forum where the appealing
party submits arguments in writing, all other parties submit papers in response to the moving
party and all parties can be heard in a meeting. Moreover, the decision-maker generally affords
each party the opportunity to respond to any arguments put forward by the “appealing” party at
the meeting. However, under the current plain language of the Model and apparent practice, the
Chief of Police has the apparent ability to present his arguments to the General Manager without
any opportunity for the Auditor or the BART Police Citizen Review Board to be heard.

19





The Model should be revised to explicitly provide for an opportunity for the Auditor and a
representative (e.g., the chair) of the BART Police Citizen Review Board to have seats at the
General Manager’s meeting with the Chief in order to be able to listen to the Chief’s arguments
and to respond to them accordingly.'® Such a process will provide the General Manager the
opportunity to hear from all impacted parties and be able to make a better-informed
determination based on input from each of them. The Model should also be revised to require
the Auditor to publicly report on the outcome of any such appeals consistent with state law.

Recommendation Fifteen: The Model should be changed to require the Chief to timely put
forward the reasons and arguments for appeal in writing and provide the Auditor and the
Chair of the BART Police Citizen Review Board the opportunity to respond in writing, to be
present at any appeal meeting, and to respond to any additional arguments set forth by the
Chief at the appeal meeting. The Model should be further revised to require the General
Manager to set out her/his findings in writing.

Recommendation Sixteen: The Model should be changed to require the Auditor to publicly
report the results of any such appeal meeting consistent with state law confidentiality
requirements.

The Model Should Be Revised so that the Chief of Police Does Not Determine Disputes
Between the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board on Case Outcomes.

Currently the Model states that in cases in which the BART Police Citizen Review Board
disagrees with the Auditor and fail to come to a consensus, the Review Board and the Auditor
are to appeal the disagreement to the Chief of Police for a determination. Under the current
model, the Chief then listens to both parties and determines whether to accept either the Review
Board or the Auditor’s findings.

Under the current language of the Model, the potential exists for an untenable situation in which
the head of the agency subject to oversight is empowered to be the initial decision-maker when
the two oversight entities disagree on outcome.*® A more appropriate dispute resolution process
would be for the General Manager to convene a meeting with the Auditor, the Chair of the
BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the Chief of Police. During that meeting, the General
Manager would hear the opposing positions of the oversight entities and render a disposition
determination accordingly.

Recommendation Seventeen: The Model should be changed so that when the BART Police
oversight entities disagree on a case disposition, the General Manager will convene a meeting
and, after receiving input from the oversight entities and the Chief of Police, render a
disposition determination.

'8 Moreover, in order for the envisioned process to effectively work, the Chief must timely
present any appeal to the General Manager.

19 We have been informed that, to date, this provision has not been applied in an actual case.
While this is fortunate, the potential for such a circumstance obviously continues to exist.

20





The Model Should Be Modified to Allow Complainants to Appeal to OIPA Any BART PD
Internal Affairs Findings.

Currently the Model provides complainants the right to appeal to OIPA the findings of an
internal investigation conducted by BART PD regarding “on-duty incidents.” There is scant
rationale for so limiting appellate rights of complainants.

Recommendation Eighteen: The Model should be revised to provide complainants the right to
appeal to OIPA the findings of any internal affairs investigation conducted by BART PD.

Complainants Should Be Informed as a Matter of Course of Their Right to Appeal BART
PD Internal Affairs Findings to OIPA.

We have been informed that the right to appeal BART PD IA findings to OIPA has been used by
complainants only infrequently. One explanation for this may be complainants’ unawareness of
this option. Pursuant to state law, when BART PD closes an internal affairs investigation, it
informs the complainant of that event by letter. The closing letter could be used as an efficacious
way to make complainants aware of their right to appeal the findings to OIPA.

Recommendation Nineteen: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that the
Police Department’s required notification letter to the complainant regarding case outcome
also informs the complainant of his/her right to appeal the finding to OIPA.

Recommendation Twenty: OIPA should regularly report on the number of appeals received
and the results of those appeals.

The Model Should Be Revised to Protect all Disposition and Disciplinary Decisions from
Unprincipled Changes at the End of the Process.

Currently, the Model simply states that any discipline recommended shall be subjected to an
administrative hearing prior implementation to address the “due process” rights of public
employees. However, the Model does not articulate a role for either oversight entity in the post-
disciplinary processes that currently exist.

Prior to the actual imposition of discipline, BART employees have the ability to argue that any
decision is not supported by the evidence or is inappropriate or otherwise unfair. Currently, the
Chief of Police has the ability to modify the initial determination and rescind charges or
discipline as he sees fit. As a result, the potential exists for initial disciplinary findings by the
oversight entities to be entirely undone by the Chief with neither notice nor opportunity for input
from them. The Model’s silence on oversight’s role in post-disciplinary appellate processes
creates a huge hole in the process that must be filled in order to ensure the effectiveness of
oversight.

One easily implemented remedy would be to add a provision to the Model requiring the Chief to
consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any disposition or discipline decision. If the
employee has raised principled reasons during the post-discipline process for a modification, the
Auditor should obviously be open to the Chief’s proposed amendments. Conversely, the Auditor
should have the opportunity to resist changes in outcome that do not seem to have a reasonable

21





basis. If the proposed change is sufficiently significant in its impact on accountability, the
Auditor should request a meeting with the General Manager prior to the change being
effectuated. The Model should also require the Auditor to report on any post-disciplinary
changes in disposition and discipline and whether he agreed with the modifications.*

After a disciplinary determination has been made, BART PD employees have the ability to
appeal to an arbitrator. BART is required in this forum to establish the policy violation and
discipline, and any determination by the arbitrator is binding on the parties. Again, our
experience with other jurisdictions is that prior or during these proceedings, the Chief and entity
may be approached by representatives of the employee with an offer to settle the case. The
settlement offer is usually an agreement by the employee to drop the appeal in exchange for a
lessening or removal of the disciplinary determination. Without the oversight entity’s input in
these settlement offers, the potential exists for a settlement that undermines accountability.

Again, an easy remedy exists. The Model should require input from the Auditor before any
settlement agreement is struck between BART and the appealing employee. Should the Auditor
determine that the settlement offer was unreasonable and undermined accountability, the Auditor
should be able to convene a meeting with the General Manager for a final determination
regarding the settlement offer. Finally, the Model should require the Auditor to report on any
disciplinary determinations that are settled, whether he was consulted, and whether he agreed
with the decision to settle the case.

The arbitration process itself is beyond the authority of OIPA but nonetheless warrants attention
as an important influence on its work. Arbitration hearings test the strength of internal
investigations and disposition determinations and can uncover potential weaknesses in those
processes. In addition, an arbitrator has the authority to rescind even termination cases and order
the agency to return the police officer to work — a power that is worthy of public awareness and
scrutiny.

During our review, we were informed of at least one instance in which a BART police officer
was returned to work after being initially terminated by the Department for a serious violation.
However, because the Model sets out no role for its oversight entity in these processes, the
Auditor did not review or assess the reason for the decision to return this terminated employee to
BART employ. As importantly, the Model did not contemplate a public accounting of this
decision as part of the Auditor’s transparency responsibilities. This should be addressed.

Recommendation Twenty-One: The Model should be revised to require the Chief of Police to
consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any initial disposition or disciplinary
determinations. The Model should provide the Auditor an appeal process to the General
Manager should he believe that any modification would result in a serious erosion of

20 \We were informed of one case in which a BART police officer originally received notice that
he was to be terminated for a serious infraction that was investigated by the Police Department.
However, that decision was reversed during the grievance process and the employee was
returned to work. The appropriateness of this decision notwithstanding, this is the type of case
that OIPA should be reporting on publicly.

22





accountability. The Model should require the Auditor to publicly report on any modification
of an initial disposition or disciplinary modification and whether he agreed with the
modification.

Recommendation Twenty-Two: The Model should be revised to require BART to apprise
OIPA of any offers to settle cases after discipline has been imposed and provide the Auditor an
opportunity for consultation. The Model should provide the Auditor the opportunity to appeal
any intention to settle the matter to the General Manager should the Auditor find that the
settlement would amount to a serious erosion of individual accountability. The Model should
require the Auditor to publicly report on any cases settled at the post-discipline stage and
whether OIPA agreed with the decision to settle.

Recommendation Twenty-Three: The Model should be revised to require the Auditor to report
on any arbitration determinations that modify or rescind initial disposition and disciplinary
decisions and to evaluate the reasons for any modification. The Model should require the
Auditor to identify any systemic issues that formed the basis for any modification and work
with BART PD to remediate those issues.

OIPA Should Report Publicly the Results of Any Completed Investigation.

While currently OIPA provides some information regarding completed investigations, we
recommend that its reporting be modified to include a narrative of the allegation, the results of
the investigation, whether the BART Police Citizen Review Board agreed with OIPA’s
recommendation, whether the Chief agreed with the proposed disposition, and whether there
were any post-disciplinary changes to the initial disposition. In most cases, the reporting should
begin when the investigation is initiated, with additional information being included as the
process moves forward. Consistent with state law requirements, identifying information about
the case or officers involved should not be included.

Recommendation Twenty-Four: OIPA should publicly report on every investigation from
inception to conclusion, providing information about the case result and the degree to which
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board recommendations were implemented.

F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA.

OIPA Should Be Expressly Authorized to Review Any Claim, Civil Complaint, and Law
Suit Settlements and Judgments.

When an individual believes he or she has been aggrieved by police officers, the person can file a
complaint with the agency and/or oversight entity. Some persons, however, seek relief through
the courts and file a claim or lawsuit instead. Depending on how the concern is received, the
entity’s response may be entirely different. Complaints filed with the agency or oversight entity
are investigated as personnel matters, while the evidence-gathering for litigation has a different
and inherently defensive orientation. We understand this dichotomy but see it differently — or at
least more broadly. Among other things, a claim or lawsuit is essentially a “citizen complaint
with a price tag attached.” If a jurisdiction handles these matters solely in litigation mode, it may
overlook important questions of potential misconduct or resist the kind of investigation that
might produce unwanted evidence.

23





For that reason, leading oversight entities routinely review claims and lawsuits to ensure that
such an appropriate internal inquiry does occur in addition to other responses. In a similar vein,
oversight entities monitor civil litigation to identify potential individual officer performance
issues as well as systemic issues that may be unsurfaced. In cases resulting in significant
settlements or adverse judgments, the oversight entity is often involved with the agency in
developing a corrective action plan designed to remediate any of those issues.

In large part, because the Model did not specify a role for OIPA in these matters, it has not been
involved in reviewing the civil litigation from an oversight and risk management perspective.
OIPA should expressly be provided such authorization so that it can perform this important
function.

Recommendation Twenty-Five: OIPA should be provided authority to review claims and
lawsuits to ensure allegations of misconduct are thoroughly investigated.

Recommendation Twenty-Six: OIPA should review any significant settlements and adverse
judgments involving BART PD performance and work with BART PD to develop corrective
actions intended to remediate any systemic issues.

Recommendation Twenty-Seven: OIPA should report publicly on its work in reviewing civil
litigation.

G. Developing a Mediation Program
OIPA Should Redouble its Efforts to Develop a Robust Mediation Program.

The Model expressly sets out a role for the Auditor in developing a mediation program. It states
expressly that OIPA “shall develop a voluntary alternative dispute resolution process for
resolving those complaints which may most appropriately be corrected or modified through less
formal means.” The Model also contemplated that the BART Police Citizen Review Board and
BART Police Associations would be part of the development process.

Nonetheless, in four years there has yet to be a case that has gone through a mediation process.
While a few individual instances have come close, participants withdrew from the process at the
eleventh hour.

Mediation — where involved parties can safely and productively articulate different viewpoints
with a neutral arbiter — provides a process consistent with contemporary principles of restorative
and procedural justice. The key to developing an effective mediation program is to make the
process worthwhile to all participants, and departments have often faced challenges in getting
officers to see the benefits. While these challenges are real, the experience of agencies in other
jurisdictions shows they are surmountable. OIPA should examine these other jurisdictions to
gain ideas for achieving a successful program. BART PD also should be more engaged in
working with OIPA and the Police Associations to consider additional incentives for police
officers to engage in mediation.

24





Recommendation Twenty-Eight: OIPA should redouble its efforts to create a mediation
process that is attractive to complainants and officers and provides an effective alternative
dispute resolution process.

H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical
Incidents

OIPA Should Receive Notification as to All Critical Incidents.

Currently, the Model provides that the Auditor shall be notified immediately regarding an
officer-involved shooting that results in the death or serious bodily injury to a member of the
public or a police officer so that the Auditor can respond in real time to the investigative scene.
The current language of the Model restrictively limits notification of OIPA to only uses of
deadly force that result in death or serious bodily injury.? While a shooting that does not result
in serious injury or loss of life has less significant consequences for the involved parties, a non-
hit shooting or one that results in minor injury still involved a decision by the officer to use
deadly force, and that decision is worthy of the same scrutiny. Additionally, the notification
protocol does not expressly include other uses of force that result in death or serious injury, or
incidents in which an off-duty officer may take police action and use deadly force.

We have been informed that, to the credit of BART PD, it has been regularly informing OIPA of
a broader set of critical incidents that do not fit squarely within the Model’s language. While
BART PD’s voluntary approach is praiseworthy, the Model should be modified so that it is clear
to all that notification of OIPA should occur for a broader category of incidents.

Recommendation Twenty-Nine: The Model should be enhanced to ensure that OIPA is timely
notified of any critical incident including all officer-involved shootings (on duty or off duty)
regardless of whether the use of deadly force resulted in injury or death, any use of force
resulting in significant injury, and any in-custody death.

I. Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of
Force

The Auditor Should Be Regularly Reviewing Uses of Force by BART Police Officers.

In order for peace officers to perform their public safety function they are provided unique
authority. In addition to being provided the power to arrest, police are provided the authority to
use force when necessary. This authority, however, must be strictly limited and its exercise
carefully scrutinized in light of the Constitution, the law, and internal policy. As a result, police
officers are required to report when they use force, and command staff of the agency has a
responsibility to review the policy and legal appropriateness of these incidents.

Because of the inherent seriousness of force incidents, and the profound ramifications of misuse
or abuse of this police power, independent oversight should be significantly involved in

2! The subheading of the Model is entitled “On-Duty Officer Involved Shooting Incidents,”
suggesting that there is no need to notify OIPA of off-duty uses of deadly force.

25





monitoring force. Currently, except for some officer-involved shootings, OIPA’s review of force
incidents is limited to situations when a “qualified person” complains of force. As a result, both
significant and minor force incidents escape the purview of BART’s oversight entity and are not
subjected to outside independent review.

OIPA should be afforded the opportunity to review every force incident and determine whether
the force should be the subject of an internal affairs investigation. OIPA should also review the
force to determine whether other issues are implicated for the involved officers or the
Department as a whole. OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that each force incident is
reviewed with an eye toward identifying systemic issues such as training, equipment,
supervision, and policy.

We also understand that BART PD convenes use of force review boards that examine significant
force incidents. OIPA should regularly participate in those review boards to provide an
independent perspective and to help assess individual performance and conduct as well as
identify systemic issues. Finally, OIPA should regularly report on its involvement in the force
review process and on any critical incidents.

Recommendation Thirty: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority for and
responsibility of reviewing use of force incidents by BART PD, regardless of whether the
incident is a subject of a complaint.

Recommendation Thirty-One: OIPA should regularly participate in BART PD’s use of force
review boards.

Recommendation Thirty-Two: OIPA should report publicly on its use of force review program
including the outcome of BART PD’s use of force review boards.

Recommendation Thirty-Three: OIPA should report publicly on the internal review of any
officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, or serious uses of force.

J. Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in
BART PD’s Early Identification System

OIPA Should Be Involved in the Early Identification System.

We have been informed that BART PD continues to develop an early identification system. This
system is intended to use relevant data to identify police officers who may be displaying patterns
of conduct that need to be addressed before they become a problem for the officer, the agency,
and/or the public. For example, an early identification system may reveal an officer who uses
force significantly more frequently than his or her counterparts on the shift — a potential “red
flag” that could make further scrutiny worthwhile. The resultant intervention is intended to be
remedial rather than punitive and might use mentoring, closer supervision, or other non-punitive
strategies tailored to help mitigate or fix identified concerns.

Our experience is such programs are not only potentially beneficial, but also that independent
oversight can be a helpful resource in their development, implementation, and execution.
Currently, there is no role for OIPA in the Department’s early identification system; we are

26





confident that setting out a distinct role for an independent voice will strengthen the system that
BART PD has been developing.

Recommendation Thirty-Four: The Model should be revised to provide authority and
responsibility for OIPA to regularly participate in BART PD’s early identification process.

Recommendation Thirty-Five: OIPA should report regularly on the status of the Department’s
early identification system and results.

K. Increasing OIPA’s Role as Auditor

The Model Should Be Modified to Increase the Auditing Function of the Independent
Police Auditor.

While the professional oversight entity for BART PD is named the Independent Police Auditor,
most of its work to date has been not auditing but investigating complaints. This incongruity
stems, in large part, because the Model does not clearly define the auditing role for the
Auditor.?As a result, OIPA has not conducted systemic audits of vital police functions. Other
jurisdictions with robust oversight regularly conduct audits of their responsible police agencies,
including the following areas:

Recruiting and hiring practices

Background investigations

Supervisor performance

Email, MDC and texting reviews

Academy and in-service training

Performance evaluations

Promotional and special assignment processes

Potential bias-based policing in stops or searches

Stop and frisk practices

Complaint intake procedures

Appropriate use of the disciplinary matrix

Transparency and public reporting of data by the police agency
Crisis intervention practices and/or interactions with the homeless
Police Department outreach

Use of lock-ups

Assessing compliance with precepts set out in pillars of 21* Century Policing

22 For example, one lost opportunity was that no role was created in the Model for OIPA to audit
and report on BART PD’s progress on implementing the recommendations set forth by the
NOBLE report referred to above.

27





These oversight entities publicly report on the results of those audits.? Those same jurisdictions
often monitor systems audits conducted by the police agencies themselves and publicly report on
the results of those audits.

The Model should be revised so that OIPA is provided authority and responsibility to conduct
systemic audits of BART PD functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service
provided to its public. Similarly, the Model should provide OIPA the authority and
responsibility of monitoring internal audits conducted by BART PD and to publicly report the
results of those audits.?*

Recommendation Thirty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority,
access to data and records, staffing, and responsibility to conduct systemic audits of BART PD
functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service provided to its public.

Recommendation Thirty-Seven: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority
and responsibility to monitor any audits conducted by BART PD regarding similar issues and
report publicly the results of those audits.

L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development

The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Be Involved in BART PD-Initiated Policy
Development.

The current Model expressly authorizes the Auditor to develop specific recommendations
concerning “General Orders and Directives, procedures, practices, and training” intended to
improve “professionalism, safety, effectiveness, and accountability” of BART PD employees.
To its credit, OIPA has made policy recommendations — for example, it most recently suggested
changes to the way in which BART PD deals with panhandlers. However, OIPA has had little
involvement in policy and training changes initiated by BART PD.?* Our experience is that the
most efficacious method of policy development is to have the police incorporate the feedback
and input of oversight entities at an early stage, rather than the presentation of a “finished”
product for review at the end of the process.

2% We were informed that the recently retired Chief requested OIPA to conduct an audit of
background investigation files, but that the project was halted because of disagreement regarding
the Auditor’s access and authority.

24 The increased role we recommend for OIPA in auditing, reporting, and real-time monitoring of
BART PD IA cases will likely result in a need to provide additional resources to the Auditor.
The Board of Directors, the General Manager, and OIPA should work jointly to determine the
degree to which additional resources will be needed to perform these additional functions.

2% For example, BART PD recently developed language intended to modify its use of force
policy; OIPA had no involvement in its initial development.

28





Recommendation Thirty-Eight: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority
and responsibility to be involved in any policy or training initiatives being developed by BART
PD and to report publicly on any reforms.

The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Forward Any Policy Recommendations to
the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors.

While the Model currently authorizes the BART Police Citizen Review Board to forward any of
its policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors, no similar
express language exists for OIPA. While we have been informed that in practice OIPA has been
provided the ability to forward policy recommendations it has made to these entities, it would be
advisable to revise the Model to expressly recognize this authority.

Recommendation Thirty-Nine: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the express
authority to forward policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or Board of
Directors. In situations in which OIPA’s recommendations are not accepted by BART PD,
OIPA should consider whether to forward its recommendations for further consideration to
BART’s governing entity.

OIPA Should Ensure that the Public Is Informed on Status and Outcome of Policy
Recommendations.

Over the years, OIPA has developed thoughtful policy recommendations. However, there is no
“record” of the degree to which BART PD accepted and integrated those recommendations. For
example, in its 2012-13 annual report, OIPA set out in detail recommended changes to BART
PD’s recording policy. However, in the subsequent annual reports, there is no follow up on
whether BART PD accepted or rejected each of the recommendations.

Recommendation Forty: In its annual report, OIPA should include an update on any previous
outstanding recommendations and the degree to which the recommendations were endorsed
by the Review Board and accepted by BART PD.

M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s
Policies and Practices

BART PD’s General Orders Should Include the Authorities and Responsibilities of its
Oversight Entities and a Provision Recognizing the Duty to Cooperate with those Oversight
Entities.

While the current General Orders and Directives of BART PD include some references to the
existence and responsibility of the Independent Police Auditor and the BART Police Citizen
Review Board, the specific responsibilities set out by the Model do not appear to be incorporated
into those Orders. BART PD General Orders should make specific reference to oversight and its
responsibilities. Moreover, BART PD’s Orders should inform its members of their responsibility
to cooperate and respect the role of its oversight entities.

29





Recommendation Forty-One: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that
BART PD’s General Orders incorporate the authority of its oversight entities and the duty of
members to cooperate in the execution of that authority.

N. Ensuring Regular Dialogue Between Oversight and
BART Police Associations

OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board Should Develop Mechanisms to Ensure
At Least Annual Meets with the BART Police Associations.

The Model instructs both OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board to meet
“periodically” and “seek input” from the BART Police Managers Association and the BART
Police Officers Association. We have been informed that while meetings may have occurred
during the first year and have been subsequently scheduled, actual meetings over the past few
years have been sporadic at best. We believe that there is value in having periodic meetings
between the oversight entities and those tasked with representing the interests of BART police
officers. For that reason, a meeting schedule should be devised by both oversight entities to
ensure there is an attempt to meet with both Police Associations at least annually. OIPA and the
Citizen Review Board should annually report on any meetings that are held with the Police
Associations.

Recommendation Forty-Two: OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board should
attempt to schedule a meeting at least annually with the two BART Police Associations. The
oversight entities should annually report on whether such meetings occurred.

O. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the
BART Police Citizen Review Board

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide Further Guidance Regarding the Relationship
Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

Consistent with oversight trends nationwide, BART’s oversight system includes a professional
oversight office and an oversight board appointed from the community. That paradigm has
resulted in OIPA being able to develop an expertise in police accountability practices adapted to
a police agency designed to police an extensive transit system and a Board selected from the
BART community that has a meaningful voice and role in both individual cases and systemic
reform.

While it is laudatory that the drafters of the Model recognized the value in having both police
practices experts and community members involved in providing oversight, more clarity is
needed in defining the relationship between the two entities. The Model should expressly
recognize that OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board are to be considered as entities
with complementary oversight roles that are independent of each other.

Much of the source of confusion about the complementary oversight entities is that the Model
assigns the BART Police Citizen Review Board administrative tasks to OIPA. To eliminate this
overlap, BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position to provide

30





administrative support for the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Executive Assistant
would assume the administrative functions now set out in Chapter 1-05 of the Model including:

Records of Review Board meetings

Preparation of Review Board reports

Review Board staff support and facilitation of training

Review Board community outreach and communicating with the public
e Application process for open Review Board seats

In addition to the administrative tasks expressly set out in the Model, the Executive Assistant
could also be responsible for assisting in developing the Review Board meeting agenda,
arranging Review Board training, coordinating Review Board outreach, assisting with Review
Board reporting responsibilities, and providing any additional administrative support for the
BART Police Citizen Review Board.

The Model currently states that the BART Police Citizen Review Board “shall assess and report
to the Board of Directors’ Personnel Committee on the performance and effectiveness” of OIPA.
We have been informed that this provision of the Model has not been implemented in practice.
The Auditor is subject to an annual performance review by the BART Board of Directors, the
appointing authority. In assessing that performance, the Board of Directors could and should
solicit input from several stakeholders, including the BART Police Citizen Review Board.
However, the Model should be modified to clarify that the BART Police Citizen Review Board
is not the “assessor” of the Auditor’s performance but simply another important source for input
to the Board of Directors.

Similarly, when a BART Police Citizen Review Board seeks reappointment to a new term, the
appointing Director should seek input from OIPA along with other important stakeholders on the
performance of that Review Board member.

Recommendation Forty-Three: The Model should be revised to expressly clarify the
independent yet complementary roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board and OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Four: BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position
for the BART Police Citizen Review Board to assist with administrative tasks now assigned to
OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Five: The Model should be revised to acknowledge that the BART
Police Citizen Review Board is one potential source of information when the Board of
Directors is seeking input on the performance of OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the opportunity for
input when a BART Police Citizen Review Board member seeks reappointment.

P. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART
Police Citizen Review Board

31





The Model should provide clarification of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member
Quialifications.

Currently the Model disallows from service on the BART Police Citizen Review Board any
person “currently employed in a law enforcement capacity” or any “relative of current and
former BART Police Department personnel.” While prohibiting relatives of current and former
BART PD personnel from serving, the Model does not expressly disallow former BART PD
personnel themselves from membership on the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Model
should be revised to correct this incongruity.

Recommendation Forty-Seven: The Model should clarify that former BART PD personnel are
ineligible to serve on the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

BART Police Citizen Review Board Members Should Have Requisite Training in Order to
Fulfill Their Responsibilities.

By selecting BART Police Citizen Review Board members from the community, BART
oversight benefits from each member’s life experience and perspective. However, modern day
policing is increasingly complex, and BART PD itself has a unique role in providing public
safety for a large transit system. As detailed above, the BART Police Citizen Review Board has
been provided considerable authority, including the ability to consider and vote on the Auditor’s
recommendations regarding specific complaint investigation dispositions.?® This authority
carries with it a heavy burden of responsibility and the BART Police Citizen Review Board
cannot effectively exercise that authority regarding investigation dispositions without each
member undertaking a careful read of each case.?’

Accordingly, in order to effectively carry out BART Police Citizen Review Board duties, each
member must be afforded a basic understanding of progressive police practices, constitutional
and state law, principles of civilian oversight, and BART PD’s distinctive challenges. The
training should also focus on how, as expressly stated in the Model, the BART Police Citizen
Review Board fulfills the “essential community involvement component” piece of the system
and how it can most effectively fulfill this role. To these ends, a training curriculum developed
for each new Review Board member, including ride-alongs, should be devised. In addition,
Review Board members should get additional training at least semi-annually, perhaps as an
agenda item during regularly scheduled meetings. As noted above, we recommend assignment
of an Executive Assistant to the Review Board; that individual could be responsible, with input
from the existing BART Police Citizen Review Board and the Auditor, for developing and
maintaining the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s training program.

26 The Board of Directors should continue to be mindful of the weighty responsibilities
demanded of each Review Board member when making future appointments.

2" Review Board members who have not had the opportunity to read the investigation and
accompanying materials should recuse themselves from deliberations and voting on the
Auditor’s recommendation for that particular case.

32





Recommendation Forty-Eight: A Training Curriculum Should Be Devised For Incoming
BART Police Citizen Review Board Members, and In-Service Training Should Be Provided at
Least Semi-Annually to Current Review Board Members.

Rotating the Location of the BART Police Citizen Review Board Meetings Would Allow
the Review Board to Reach More Communities.

As noted above, BART PD is responsible for providing public safety for a transit system to
traverses multiple jurisdictions over a wide-ranging area. Yet the BART Police Citizen Review
Board responsible for oversight over this region only meets at one location. Community
members served must travel to this location to attend meetings and provide public comment.
While this challenge is ameliorated by the transit-friendly locale of the meetings, it would
demonstrate the Review Board’s responsiveness to other communities to rotate the meeting
locations. While such a rotation may provide some logistical challenges, it appears worth
exploring whether those hurdles can be overcome.

Recommendation Forty-Nine: The BART Police Citizen Review Board should consider
rotating its meetings to a wider array of locales served by BART.

The BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Outreach Should Be More Vibrant.

The current Model notes that the existence of the BART Police Citizen Review Board effectuates
the essential community involvement component of the oversight system. To advance that
crucial role, the Model expects that the BART Police Citizen Review Board will lead in outreach
efforts to the community, particularly constituencies impacted most by policing, including
communities of color, immigrant communities, and individuals with psychiatric disabilities.
While the Review Board’s regularly scheduled public meetings fulfills that role to some degree,
the Model certainly contemplated that more could and should be done in the outreach arena. We
gather from the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s annual reports that outreach has been
largely undertaken by a few members. However, outreach should be an expected responsibility
of all members of the Review Board.

To that end, before a Review Board member is appointed, the appointing authority should
emphasize the outreach expectation to the potential appointee. Moreover, at one year intervals,
the BART Police Citizen Review Board should place an item on the agenda in which each
member publicly reports on the outreach efforts he/she has undertaken. The degree to which a
member has engaged in public outreach should be considered by the appointing authority in
determining whether to reappoint the member to an additional term. The Executive Assistant
(recommended elsewhere) for the BART Police Citizen Review Board should track the outreach
efforts of individual members and the Review Board as a whole.

Recommendation Fifty: Procedures should be adopted by the BART Police Citizen Review
Board intended to ensure that the Model’s commitment to outreach is achieved. To that end,
each incoming member should be alerted to outreach expectations by his/her appointing
authority. On an annual basis, each Review Board member should report publicly on the
outreach he/she has undertaken the previous year. Finally, the degree of each member’s

33





public outreach will be considered prior to reappointing the Review Board member to an
additional term.

The Model Should Provide More Flexibility for “Good Cause” Meeting Absences.

Currently, the Model calls for removal of any BART Police Citizen Review Board member who
misses more than three regularly scheduled meetings per year. While the interest in having
Review Board members attend meetings is well-placed, there may be situations where a member
has “good cause” to miss a meeting. For that reason, it would be advisable to provide each
Director with flexibility to excuse his/her appointed Review Board member’s absence for good
cause. Such excusal would not count against the absence limit requirements.

Recommendation Fifty-One: The Model should be revised to authorize excused absences for
good cause that would not count against the absence limitations.

Q. Providing Increased Transparency Authority for
BART Oversight

The BART Oversight Entities Should Be Expressly Authorized to Make Public Statements.

It is not uncommon for officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, significant force incident
or allegations of misconduct to engender immediate controversy and concern, particularly if part
of the incident is captured on videotape. In those cases, the existence of oversight entities can
assist in tempering that concern with the recognition that there will be an independent review and
accounting of the incident at the conclusion of any investigation. In recognition of this,
jurisdictions have provided their oversight entities full rein to make public statements about their
role in the wake of controversial incidents.

We have been informed that the Auditor has interpreted the Model to allow him the authority to
make public statements about his work and BART policing issues. That being said, the Model
should be revised to expressly authorize the Auditor freedom to make such statements.
Moreover, the Auditor should be free to speak with any media outlets about any aspect of
oversight and in conjunction with any public report or findings. The BART Police Citizen
Review Board’s ability to make timely public statements provides logistical challenges since the
Review Board meets as a body only periodically. However, the BART Police Citizen Review
Board should consider authorizing the Chair to make public statements on behalf of the Review
Board regarding role and process when an exigency to respond is presented.

Recommendation Fifty-Two: The Model should be revised to expressly authorize OIPA and
the BART Police Citizen Review Board to make public statements about their oversight work.

R. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART Oversight
BART’s Oversight Entities Should Be Reviewed on a Regular Basis.

As noted above, the current Model provided for an assessment of oversight after one year of
implementation. Because the world of oversight is new and constantly evolving, there should be
a commitment to a periodic review of BART’s oversight entities on a going forward basis.

34





Recommendation Fifty-Three: The Model should be revised to call for periodic reviews of
BART’s oversight entities at a minimum of four-year intervals.

35






Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA)

m BART Silicon Valley Extension Project
Phase |l Update

BART Board of Directors Presentation
April 12, 2018






— Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Purpose

 Environmental Review Overview
o Station Area Planning Context
 Next Steps





Santa Clara County BART Extension Update

VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Proposed Project Overview
e 6-mile extension
* ~b-mile subway (with 2 vent structures)

e 4 stations: Alum Rock/28" St., Downtown San
Jose, Diridon, Santa Clara

e Includes Transit Oriented Joint Development
(TOJD)

* Newhall Storage Yard & Maintenance Facility
 New train cars
e $4.69* billion projected cost
o 52,011 riders (35,300 net riders)
» 2026 - estimated revenue service

Proposed Project Schedule

2018 June Record of Decision
2018 Fall Enter FTA New Starts, begin engineering
2026 Projected Revenue Service

* Year of expenditure excluding unallocated contingencies and potential borrowing
costs

) Fremont

Fremont

(QJ Warm Springs

Santa Clara

Santa Clara 4

O Berryessa
\ \

\ [ w Rock/28th Street
1280, O Downtown San Jose

i

San Jose






Santa Clara County BART Extension Update

VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Newhall Maintenance Facility

— :.\q,% ds-
,-5,,_:* San Jose Mineta
‘o International Airport

2
2%
)
L

-
> Newhall »
+Maintenance~

4 : -~ o ~ Avaya Stadium
2 a““““ S Facility ~ ¥
- i -
Daly Sciance Ilnl. ' > . ..' o
o \Qf"v
NN s ez B Y
e The atre 3 %
Ui 0\
N N
Nabih Leavey Contr, 3 (B2
Hal > e
S .

Legend )y

': : : Newhall Maintenance Facility
Tunnel Options
A\ \\| Cut and Cover

Retained Cut

2
)
P o
A Tunnel Bl "’a% |
= (7 4 o
0 500 1,000 ns 5 o] >
L 1 | Lo =
Feet N & N T
= = a
- $
3 3





BART
Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Phase Il Project Cost = $4.78 billion

Year of expenditure excluding unallocated contingencies and potential borrowing costs

VTA Funding Strategy (ebrary2os) $4.69 Billion!
o Expended Funds: $160 Million

o Projected Local & State Funds: $3.25 Billion

o Projected Federal Funds: $1.5 Billion

Projected Funding: $4.91 Billion®

As part of the Federal New Starts review process, FTA will conduct a risk evaluation and establish with VTA the
contingency levels for the project.

VTA is targeting the maximum State Transit & Intercity Rail Capital Program amount of $750 million. The
current program is competitive and any allocation awarded to VTA could be less than the target amount.

The amount included in the funding strategy assumes pre-risk assessed cost and excludes finance costs.

YA Solutions that move you






. Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Environmental Documents - History
2004 Final EIR (CEQA) - 16 mile project
 Dec 9, 2004 — VTA certifies FEIR and approves project

2007 Supplemental EIR - 16 mile project
 June 7, 2007 — VTA certifies SEIR and approves revised project
2010 Final EIS (NEPA) - 10 and 16 mile projects

» Subsequent decision by VTA to divide project into 2 phases due to
funding considerations

2010 Record of Decision - 10-mile project (“Phase I”)

2011 Final 2"d SEIR - 10-mile project (“Phase I")
 March 3, 2011 — VTA certifies FSEIR2 & approves 10-mile project
 March 21, 2011 — BART Board accepts FSEIR2 & approves project

2018 Final Supplemental EIS/Subsequent EIR - 6-mile project
(Phase 2)

 April 5, 2018 VTA certifies SEIR & approves project





. Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

April 5" — VTA Board Actions
1. Certified the Phase Il SEIR (CEQA)

2. Adopted Findings, Facts in Support of Findings and Statement of
Overriding Considerations.

3. Adopted a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

4. Adopted Recommended Project Description and approved the Phase Il
Project.

April 12th — BART Board Phase Il Update (for information)

April 26t — proposed BART Board actions
1. Accept Phase Il SEIR

2. Adopt related Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

3. Approve the Phase Il Project adopted by VTA





. Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

SEIR/SEIS Project Options

1. CEQA Alternatives
e BART or BART with TOJD* — BART with TOJD* recommended

2. Downtown San Jose Station Location
 West or East Option — West recommended

3. Diridon Station Location
e North or South options — North recommended

4. Tunneling Methodology
e Single-Bore or Twin-Bore — Single-Bore recommended

* Transit-Oriented Joint Development





. Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Future Option Decisions
 Analyzed in SEIR, will be refined during engineering phase

1. Refine Location for Stockton Avenue Structure
- prior to ROW acquisition

2. Refine Underground Entrance Locations

- prior to ROW acquisition
- coordinated with City of San Jose in consideration
with public input

3. Refine Tunnel-Boring Machine Option

- With input from, and the recommendations of, the Contractor
selected to perform the tunnel excavation work (earth pressure
balanced, slurry or hybrid).






Santa Clara County BART Extension Update

VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Significant Unavoidable Impacts of VTA-approved project

Construction-related Impacts (Project and Cumulative)

1.

4.

On vehicular traffic, bicyclists, and pedestrians at all four stations, the West Tunnel
Portal, and the Newhall Maintenance Facility.

On bus transit at the Downtown San Jose and Diridon Stations.

On air quality due to total nitrogen oxides and reactive organic gases emissions from all
facilities.

Noise impacts at the Downtown San Jose and Diridon Stations.

Operational Impacts

1.

To vehicular traffic at the De La Cruz Boulevard and Central Expressway intersection
resulting from TOJD at Santa Clara Station.

On air quality impacts due to total reactive organic gases resulting from all TOJD
locations.

Greenhouse gas impacts due to total emissions resulting from all TOJD locations.

10





International Airport

Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

\;....
@

BERRYESSA/NORTH SAN JOSE
STATION

Mineta
San Jose

SANTA CLARA

"N STATION
e Newhall 3

Maintenance '

Facility , A_I_.UM ROCK/
“LA428TH STREET
|| STATION
_ DOWNTOWN 7
" SAN JOSE STATION =~
" EASTOPTION _~
& SR 503 '
\\ DIRIDON STATION _ ’
B 5% DOWNTOWN
\ORTH OPTION | % SAN JOSE STATION
N WEST OPTION S
P %G % 2.
- 5. 55
330) DIRIDON STATION U < | LEGEND
A R : SOUTH OPTION wsm= Phase | Alignment
¢ =i
DIRIDDNS‘I’A‘I’ION i § as!e ; wu;—an I:‘:? e- ore:ourre ignment
SOUTH OET‘ON ingle-Bore Tunnel Alignment Option
NOT TO SCALE !

msmmm Twin-Bore Tunnel Alignment Option






Alum Rock/28th St Station

BART’'s Assessment of Station Area*

 Access Typology: Balanced Intermodal

« TOD Typology: Neighborhood Town Center

« TOD SNAPSHOT: smallest opportunity, mixed-use residential TOD to
complement the community.

« CHALLENGE: jobs v. housing, development intensity

* Based on staff analysis of VTA ridership model outputs, City’s existing land use plans and standards, and current
development climate.

Phase Il SEIR (2018)

Ridership (2035) 10,300

Transit Parking
TOJD Parking
Residential (DU)
Retail (sf)

Office (sf)

KNR

TPES
™S

ALK

STATION ENTRANCE OPTIONS
UNDERGROLND STATION
CONCOURSE, & 5YSTEM
FACILITIES

ABUVE ANL BELUW GHUUNU
SYSTEMS FACILITIES

PARKING/PURLIC FACILITY/
WTA'S TRANSIT-ORIENTED JOINT
DEVELOPMENT

ROADWAY MODIFICATIONS
CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREA
KEY PEDESTRIAN LINKAGE

BUS CIRCLLATION

VEHICLE ACCESS

NEW SIGMALIZED
INTERSECTION

BIKE FACILITY
ELEVATOR

EMERGENCY EGRESS
(PASSENGER; SERVICE ENTHY)

ENTRAMCE #
FRESH AIR INTAKE
KISS-AND-RIDE

WTAS TRANSIT-ORIENTED JOINT
DEVELOPMENT LOCATION #

TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION
TUNNEL VENTILATION SHAFT

ALILIARY POWER SUBSTATION

1,200
2,150
275
20k
500k

12





Downtown San Jose Station Hf-l u =N Phase Il SEIR (2018)

gggg‘h'p 24,287
Transit Parking 0
TOJD Parking 128
Residential 0
(DU)

Retail (sf) 10k
Office (sf) 72k
LEGEND

| P| STATION ENTRANCE

1~ 71 UNDERGROLUND STATION &
L=l SYSTEM FACILITIES

l:l ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND
SYSTEMS FACILITIES

ﬁ PUBLIC FACILITY/
VTAS TRANSIT-ORIENTED JOINT
DEVELOPMENT

— — CONSTRUCTION STAGING
AREA

ELEVATOR

(]

EE EMERGENCY EGRESS
(PASSENGER: SERVICE ENTRY)

BART's Assessment of Station Area* I

e Access Typology Urban FA FRESH AIR INTAKE

« TOD Typology: Regional Center I3 VELOPMENT LOCATION #
« TOD SNAPSHOT: Regional jobs destination TOD

« CHALLENGE: residential development consumes job sites

P55 TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION

VS TUNMEL YENTILATION SHAFT

* Based on staff analysis of VTA ridership model outputs, City’s existing land use plans and standards, and AN SRR FISESRLERINIGH

current development climate. . PROPERTY OWHED BY VTA

13





Phase Il SEIR (2018)

Ridership

(2035) 9,553
Transit Parking 0
TOJD Parking 400
Residential

(DU) 0
Retail (sf) 35k
Office (sf) 640k

LEGEND
[»] sranon entrance

I~ 71 UNDERGROUND STATION,
L=l CONCOURSE, & SYSTEM
FACILITIES

ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND
SYSTEMS FACILITIES

FUBLIC FACILITY!

VTA'S TRANSIT-ORIENTED
JOINT DEVELOPMENT
TRANSIT FACILITY

CONSTRUCTION STAGING
AREA

KEY PEDESTRIAN LINKAGE
BUS CIRCULATION
VEHICLE ACCESS

ELEVATOR

EE EMERGENCY EGRESS
(PASSENGER; SERVICE ENTRY)

B ENTRANCE #

FAl FRESH AIR INTAKE
KNR: KISS-AND-RIDE

» Access Typology: Balanced Intermodal or Urban o SO
« TOD Typology: Regional Center Locaiows
« TOD SNAPSHOT: Regional jobs destination TOD. v ——
« CHALLENGE: parking supply & management, compatibility of uses A ALAR! POUER SUBSTATON
(job center & entertainment)
* Based on staff analysis of VTA ridership model outputs, City’s existing land use plans and standards, and current 14

development climate.





Santa Clara County BART Extension Update

VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Diridon: Station
e Cooperation Agreement
e Integrated Station Concept Plan

Diridon: Station Area
« City in ENA with Google for City and other publicly owned land

« Civic engagement process initiated - February 2018
e Station Area Design Guidelines update initiated - April 2018

T

e - P am S BN ™ N N AN
> \ <

15





Santa Clara Station === :‘.,

L CAMBO REAL

e )
| )\
/‘t/ AND VEHICLE STORAGE.
L
BART's Assessment of Station Area*
 Access Typology: Balanced Intermodal or Urban with Parking
« TOD Typology: Urban / City Center
« TOD SNAPSHOT: Greatest SVSX TOD opportunity, 432 acres
redevelopable as dense jobs TOD.

« CHALLENGE: neighborhood concerns, job center

= -

* Based on staff analysis of VTA ridership model outputs, City’s existing land use plans and standards, and current
development climate.

Phase Il SEIR (2018)

Ridership
(2035)

Transit Parking
TOJD Parking

Residential
(DU)

Retail (sf)
Office (sf)

LEGEND

[>]

BN BRC

EE

El

KMR

TPSS
ALK

STATION ENTRANCE
AT GRADE STATION

MBOVE AND BELOW GROUND
SYSTEMS FACILITIES

PARKING/PUBLIC FACILITY!
WTA'S TRANSIT-ORIENTED
JOINT DEVELOPMENT
MAINTENANCE FACILITY WITH
VWEHICLE STORAGE 7 TAIL
TRACKS

ROADWAY MODIFICATIONS

CONSTRUCTION STAGING
AREA

KEY PEDESTRIAN LIMKAGE
BUS CIRCULATION
WEHICLE ACCESS
ELEVATOR

EMERGEMNCY EGRESS
ENTRANCE #
KISS-AND-RIDE

WTA'S TRANSIT-ORIENTED
JOINT DEVELOPMENT
LOCATION

TRACTION FOWER SUBSTATION

ALXILIARY POWER SUBSTATION

7,871

500
2200

220

30k
500k

16





BART
Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Land Use & Access Planning Activity Near Future Stations

> )

85 82 2 90

= 3 o = a2 05 Status
Specific Plan X completed (2014)
Station Area or Concept Plan X X  completed
quntown Strategy Update « (R
(City of San Jose)
TOD Strategy and Access Planning X X x underway; completion est.
(VTA - FTA Pilot TOD Planning Grant) Spring 2019
Downtown San Jose Mobility, Streetscape PDA grant awarded, MTC

. _ X X :

and Public Life Plan (City of San Jose) approval later this month
East San Jose Multlmodal Transportation « to begin June 2018
Improvement Plan (City of San Jose)
Design Guidelines update X X underway

Possible local actions that would support TOD and ridership growth:
 Rezone each station area « Establish minimum densities

e Allow TOD outright « Establish parking maximums
* Prohibit new auto-oriented uses « Eliminate parking minimums 17





BART
Santa Clara County BART Extension Update
VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase Il Extension Project

Next Steps

 April 26, 2018 — BART Board Actions on SEIR
 June 4, 2018 — Record of Decision (FTA)

18






ey

-,

—

-

Isabel Neighborhood Plan
BART Board of Directors Meeting
April 12, 2018

LIVERM®RE





s
Planning Area

Tive
Municipal Air 5

Fd

LIVERVIORE
S





Isabel Neighborhood Plan Elements

Land Use Designations

- Affordable Housing and Economic [ Seushtivermerealleygrmerms
Development Strategies

Design Standards and Guidelines

Public Infrastructure Improvements
- Transportation
- Utilities
- Community Facilities

Implementation Plan Downtown
. . Specific Plan
- FInancing Strategy
- Phasing

- Transportation Demand
Management

LIVERM@®RE





e 5 phases beginning in 2015:

O

©O O O O

e Outreach: over 50 meetings
with over 800 participants +
over 3,000 survey responses

Planning Process

Visioning

Alternatives

Preferred Plan

Draft Plan and Draft EIR
Adoption hearings






Objectives

Create a complete, walkable
neighborhood

Take advantage of regional
rail service to address
citywide goals

Support transit ridership

LIVERM@®RE





I —————————
Proposed Land Use Plan- Change Areas

&
3
o

22 fici'yuce vy
Parking Overlay

ooooooo
ooooooo

o

Livermore Municlpal Alrport

S— —






Estimated Net New Development

Land Use Planning Area Total
Residential 4,095 housing units
Office 1,655,900 sf
Business Park 240,800 sf
o |asa0s
General Commercial 296,300 sf

General Industrial 413,100 sf

Total 2,104,200 sf

Jobs 9,100 jobs

LIVERV®RE






S
Residential Categories

Category Density (height) ';P §|;0nxri1ren dazen?;are
E Transition 15-25 du/ac (up to 3 stories) 16%
- Village 25-40 du/ac (up to 4 stories) 18%

Center 40-60 du/ac (up to 5 stories) 21%

Core 60-100 du/ac (up to 6 stories) 35%






Affordable Housing

* Goal for 25% of the new housing units to be affordable
workforce housing

* Inclusionary requirement of 20% (versus 15% citywide)

— About 1,000 affordable units around the BART station!






————————————
Proposed Roadway Network

,
e
o

P
H
b, A o
i
'._'.
e
.w"'
&= o
e i
" Pot el
L) ‘\
*
Livermore Municipal Airport

[

etk

sof
L Las Positas
Y College
o
= ——

o
.r.. =R
]
-
-
--—"---
~
~ -
S o
Wi -
= =

I Major Strest
m— Main Strect
e Pedestrian Street
e Bicycle Street

=—— MNeighborhood Street
I Freeway
I Highway
@  Esisting Signal
o ©  MewSignal
o €3 Potential Future Signal

= mm BART Extension
TLITi Proposed Street
E==—=3 RART Pedestrian Bridge
wenmmm— By Tum-around Area

i
&
-
Ar,
Ero 2
|
80
!
!
!
i
3
i/
J
}f
.
/
i f" j
fr g .
-
’/ @
#
o 500 1000 2000
FEET

o





Walksheds from Isabel Avenue BART Station

4G

! 5 2

oo M N7

€ -
=

1)
a—
—
o i

e, /

Isabel Trail

- | 7 5-Minute Walk
[ === from lsabel Station
-
- 10-Minute Walk
.-.. l:l from lsabel Station
13 ® BART Pedestrian Bridge
LY Point of Contact
) o
H s Trail - Existing
.
: 5 cresh spmemy Trail - Proposed
- 3
&
r,h_:. \\\_J‘ el * s Pedestrian Street
55 f 7 - === Existing Crosswalk
i 1 s
’ | 7 == New Crosswalk across
Existing Roadway
mmpmn Pedestrian and Bike
Bridge/Underpass
H
5 = . [ ] OpenSpace
por P 2 emmmesm BART Extension
i l._-...I Planning Area
.‘_" o
l‘ ;
d A |
b ¥ Vi
r
ANCETE
¥
] 1
B0
3 ! Brroyo
3 : { Positas
3 f / HTrail ¥
\ i [
- / s
\ / @
N, / :
S ¥ ; @
B £ 3
- r “ v
R ’_‘_.r" i s ‘”1.
3 - \\
.. ¢ b :
g, i 500 1000 00 | 5ac
FEET

11





Relationship to BART to
Livermore Extension

5 4 -n;. - "*,_ ﬁ San Joaquin
D"h“ﬂf :--1‘ = E : ""'"l-.'j
Pleasanton BART Proppsedisabel Ave & | }
Station r-ﬂﬁﬂTStat?nn *'..--, *-i
gl et ——] - L 4
Lo it |
B |
""" H-"’}J j
Hﬂ : - L] - i
glankey 'Q‘"* t'" ]
] : [ L i
------ Livermore City Limits )
mmmmm  Existing BART Line +
msm== Proposed BART Extension :

S





Effect on Ridership if Land Use Assumptions are
Changed to reflect City’s Plans for Isabel Area

14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000

Net New BART Riders in 2040

BART

Isabel Neighborhood Plan
(~4,100 new housing units)

City’s General Plan
(no new housing)

Express Bus

Plan Bay Area mCity's Plans

(~2,200 new housing units)

13





Lifecycle Cost per New BART Boarding in 2040

$25.00 62056 $22.44
$20.00 ' $18.26

$15.00 $14.11
$10.00

$5.00

$0.00
Plan Bay Area City's Plans

m BART Express Bus

When reflecting the City’s Plans, the BART extension
becomes more cost effective than the Express Bus alternative

14





————————————
BART'S Property

LIVERM®RE i






Next Steps

* Planning Commission: May 1, 2018
» City Council: May 14, 2018

e BART Board decision on BART to Livermore
Extension project

Questions?

LIVERM®RE 6






		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16




Quarterly Report of the
Controller-Treasurer
Period Ending 12/31/17

BART Board of Directors
April 12, 2018





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

» The District currently provides benefits to employees which include, but are not limited to:

Retirement Pension Plan managed by the California Public Employee Retirement System
(CALPERS), and funded by contributions from the District and it’s employees. CALPERS is
the largest pension plan in the United States with assets of approximately $300 billion.

Retiree Medical Benefits coverage funded by a Trust established by the District in 2005.
The Trust as of December 31, 2017.
a. Invested in a combination of stocks, bonds, REIT & cash,
b Benchmark 6.75%,
c. Total net assets $297.5 million and inception to date return is 7.1%,
d Quarterly Report to the Unions

Survivor Benefits of active and retired employees funded by the employees
(S15/month),

Life Insurance for retired employees.

The District also accrues liabilities through Property & Casualty insurance and workers
compensation claims and maintains the required reserves related to its self-funded
insurance programs for worker’s compensation and general liability based on an annual
actuarial study.





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

Valuation Date _Market Value of Assets Total Liability Unfunded Liability % Funded

Retirement Pension with CALPERS

Miscellaneous Employees 6/30/2016 S 1,614,430,356 S 2,180,799,091 S 566,368,735 74.0%

Safety Employees 6/30/2016 S 180,391,930 S 306,909,516 S 126,517,586 58.8%
Retiree Health Benefits 6/30/2016 S 237,403,000 S 537,873,000 S 300,470,000 44.1%
Other Post Employment Benefits

Life Insurance 6/30/2016 S - S 30,501,000 S 30,501,000 0.0%

Survivors Benefits 6/30/2016 S $6,814,000 S 39,322,000 A $ 32,508,000 17.3%

Note A: Based on discount rate of 3.58% (Bond Buyer 20 General Obligation Bond Index per GASB 75).





%

Q m Q S € =M

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

CALPERS Pension Plan Funding Progress

120.0%

100.0% \
o \/N—‘/‘\‘\’

60.0% M
40.0%
=4-Miscellaneous
={i—Safety
20.0%

0.0% T T T T T T T 1
6/30/2008  6/30/2009 6/30/2010  6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014  6/30/2015 6/30/2016

Valuation Date






Q ® Q S € =M

70.00%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Retiree Health Benefits Plan

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%
6/30/2008

6/30/2009

6/30/2010

6/30/2011

6/30/2012  6/30/2013  6/30/2014  6/30/2015  6/30/2016
Valuation Date

=¢==% Funded





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Accounts Payable

»  Our goal is to pay 93% of our invoices within 30 days. We continue to keep our focus on getting our vendors paid
as quickly as possible. During the most recent quarter, the District was able to process 89.6% of all paid invoices
within 30 days. Of those that were not processed in 30 days, 9.2% were processed within 60 days, and 1.1% were
processed within 90 days. The trend depicting the past year is shown here:

100% /

90% -

Quarterly Number of Voucher Payment Trend

80% -
70% -

60% - ® 1-30 Days Paid Percent

50% - W 31-60 Days Paid Percent
MW 61-90 Days Paid Percent
40% -
91+Days Paid Percent
30% -

20% -

Number of Voucher Paid in Percent

10% -
3.9% 3.5%
O% : . (]

2017Q3 2017Q4 2018Q1

. (]

2018Q2

Invoiced Fiscal Quarter





TOTAL OUTSTANDING (in thousands)

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Accounts Receivable

»  The time to receive reimbursement funding from our funding partners is shown in the chart below. The amount
outstanding is $23,163,000 as of December 31, 2017.

Amount Billed A/R Grants as of 12/31/2017

$14,000

$12,032
OTH, $596
$12,000
ECCRFFA, $952
$10,000 LTRANS, $3,334
$8,000 CCTA, $149
MTC, $1,361
$4,992 OTH, $149
36,000 VTA, $2,145 , s 4504 S
ECCRFFA, $483
ALTRANS, $1
CCTA, $1,795
$4,000 MTC, $1,872
ACTC, $3,495 MTC, $380
S 1,595 OTH, $57
ACTC, $2,577
$2,000 VTA, $2,185 CALTRANS, $13
’ CCTA, $1,526
$_

01-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121+ days





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

3. DISTRICT FINANCES

The District continues to actively search for investments which meets the Investment Policy and generates a yield higher than
zero. Shown below are the composition of the District’s cash and investments as of the end of the quarter.

Cash and Investments

Total Cash in Banks: $130,583,229

Total CD Investments: $865,957

Total Government Securities: $427,281,000

Return on T-Bill Investments: Weighted average is 1.24% - Due to a better market, rates are up slightly from 1.03% reported
in previous quarter. The weighted average maturity (WAM) of our T-Bill Investment portfolio is 187 days.

Pie chart showing the difference in cash, CD investments and government securities

Y VYVVVY

/_$865,957 Government Securities:

* FHLB
e UST

* |ADB
* |FC

* FNMA

m Cash In Bank m CD Investments m Government Securities





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Debt

>

The District currently has two types of debt outstanding:
1. Sales Tax Revenue Debt
2. General Obligation Debt

Sales Tax Revenue Debt

>
>
>

>

Currently outstanding debt of $528.81 million.
Annual Debt Service $41.9 million (effective after December 2017 Sales Tax Refunding).

Debt Services comes “off the top” of sales tax revenues remitted to the district by the State
Board of Equalization.

This directly impacts the operating budget.

General Obligation Bonds

YV YV V

YV YV V

** Measure AA

Currently outstanding debt of $566.2 million.

Issued $740 of S980 authorized.

Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2017/2018 is $6.30/$100,000
¢ Measure RR

Currently outstanding debt of $271.6 million.
Issued $300 million out of $3.5 billion authorized.
Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2017/2018 is $2.10/$100,000





		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer �Period Ending 12/31/17�

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17��Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/17



